
 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 
 

 
5:30 pm STUDY SESSION

No Study Session Items   
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 

Council will immediately convene into closed session after hearing any public comment on Closed Session. At 
7:30pm the Council will recess into Open Session and then resume Closed Session at the end of the meeting to 
address outstanding items. 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION
This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4).  Based on the advice of the City Attorney, discussion in open session 
concerning these matters would prejudice the position of the City in this litigation.  The Mayor will give an additional 
oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council meeting. 

 
1. Conference with Labor Negotiator 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiator: Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  Police Officer Association (POA) 

2. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – City Attorney 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 
Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (4) of Subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9 (Deciding Whether to Initiate Litigation): 1 Case 
 

In the event that not all the items on the closed session agenda have been deliberated in the time provided, the City 
Council may continue the closed session at the end of the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
October 7, 2014 



Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 

 
7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
d. CLOSED SESSION REPORT(S) 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name.  Prior to 
addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to Council/Agency 
Board and appropriate staff. 
 

 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 
No Ceremonial / Presentations. 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – September 16, 2014 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – October 3, 2014 
2-3 Approval – Adoption of Resolution 2014-27 Approving the Cinnamon Drive and 
 Docksteader Ditch Project 
2-4 Approval – Adoption of Resolution 2014-28 Adopting a Notice of Exemption in 
 Accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
2-5 Approval – Street Closure – 2nd Annual Lemoore Veterans Day Parade – Tuesday, 
 November 11, 2014  
2-6 Approval – Budget Adjustment – Emergency Improvements at the Renovated Kings 
 Lions Complex 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Continuation of First Reading – General Plan Amendment (Resolution 2014-29) and 

Change of Zone (Ordinance 2014-05) for B&L Moving and Storage (Brandt) 
3-2 First Reading – Zone Text Amendment to Modify Performance Standards for Home 

Occupation Permits – Ordinance 2014-06 (Brandt) 



3-3 First Reading – Amendment to 5-1-3 and 5-1-77 and Addition of 5-1-80, 5-1-29, 5-1-
30 and 5-1-31 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to Animal Control – 
Ordinance 2014-07 (Smith) 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 
 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – Resolution 2014-30 Naming Jenell Van Bindsbergen 

as City Attorney for City of Lemoore (Laws) 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Resolution 2014-31 Update on Senate Bill 7 

Litigation and Request for Additional Funding (Laws) 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports 
6-2 City Council Requests 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.3(a), public comments may be directed to the legislative body concerning any 
item contained on the agenda for this meeting before or during consideration of the item.  Those wishing to address Council on an 
item shall be limited to between 3-5 minutes and if a large group, the Mayor may request that individuals provide only new 
information not presented by another person. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In 
addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com.  

 
Tentative Future Agenda Items 

October 21st 
Final Map for Golf Couse Tract 752 (Wlaschin) 
Update – Annexation of City’s Boundary Limits across the Main East Canal to 18th Avenue (Laws) 
Pedestrian Crossing Study – Bush Street at Heinlen Street (Simonson) 
Central Coast Explorer Challenge Recognition (Smith) 
Red Ribbon Week (Smith) 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above City Council/ Redevelopment Successor Agency Agenda for the meeting of October 7, 2014 at City 
Hall, 119 Fox Street St., Lemoore, CA, on October 3, 2014. 
 
          //s//     
Mary J. Venegas 
City Clerk 



1 
 

Item 2-1 
 

 
September 16, 2014 Minutes 

Study Session Joint City Council / 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 

ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: SIEGEL 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: WYNNE 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, RODARMEL    
 
City Staff and Contract Employees Present: City Manager Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance 
Director Silva; Police Chief Smith; Quad Knopf Planner Brandt; City Clerk Venegas. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

 
Darryl Malone had an issue with a parking violation he received from Lemoore PD in regards to 
parking on Commerce Avenue.  Police Chief Smith stated this particular area is not a truck route 
and the signs that were placed there were not placed by the City.  The signs will be removed. 
 

 
STUDY SESSION – Section SS

 
SS-1 Public Benefits Assessment 
 
Quad Knopf Planner Steve Brant presented the report stating a public benefit assessment is one 
option to maintain the long term financial viability of the golf course.  A benefit assessment district 
is additional property tax put on the properties within that district.  In order to pass, 50% of the 
ballots mailed back to the city must approve of the assessment. 
 
Spoke: 
 Art Arredondo    Warren Reef 
 Scott Goodrich   Maryella Leary 
 Gary Belding    Tim Christian 
 John Buyense    Randy Comer 
 Bobby Scoggins   Jane Dart 
 Dennis Pavek    Lynn Avila 
 Peggy Miller    Joe Simonson 
 Jennifer Miller    Chris Wertenburger 
 Rosie Madrigal   Sheila Taylor 
  
Comments/Questions: 
- Money better spent repairing all streets than spending on a pool. 
- Many noes on the golf course, yes on the pool. 
- Improve the bike paths and shade the walkways. 
- Would like to keep the golf course public and it is an asset to our town. 



2 
 

- Is the golf course on the same two day watering schedule as the rest of the city?  No, the golf 
course is watered daily to keep the greens alive.  If the greens were to die, it would be 
approximately $40,000 per green to replace. 
- If the golf course fails, the balance of the debt is still owed and the citizens of Lemoore would be 
required to pay.  Allowing it to fail is not a smart financial option. 
- It is not fair for the golf course and the high school to ignore the current watering schedule. 
- Strong opposition to selling the golf course at previous study session meetings.  The offer to 
purchase the golf course is no longer available. 
- Sell the property to a developer and build homes out there. 
- Sell the property and take a loss if necessary. 
- Repurpose the golf course such as renting out for camping, boy scouts and community garden. 
- Ask West Hills College for assistance as they utilize the golf course on a regular basis. 
- What is the average the golf course losses per year?  Finance Director Silva will work on getting 
that number.  It fluctuates. 
- Is astro turf an option for the greens?  
- How long to pay off the remaining $1.5 million debt if the golf course were sold at a loss of $2 
million?  It would take 14 years to be paid back.  Debt can be restructured at any time. 
- Sell the golf course. 
- What type of improvements would be considered?  Possibly a solar structure to offset the 
electricity costs. 
- Sell the back 9 and keep the original front 9 of the golf course. 
- How much would each taxpayer pay for the assessment?  The study would be $22,000 and they 
would determine the amount.  It could be roughly $35 to $50 per year.  A need has to be identified 
in order to determine an amount. 
- Run it like a business.  If not working, sell it. 
- Ask the Navy Base if they are interested in the golf course. 
- 11 yes for assessment, 47 no for assessment, 6 maybe for assessment 
 
Council Consensus that the special assessment would fail and to not proceed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem asked City Manager Laws to speak with Parks and Recreation Director Simonson 
and Rich Rhoads about watering and reassess their current daily watering schedule. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

At 6:47 p.m. Council adjourned. 
 
 
 
 

September 16, 2014 Minutes 
Regular Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: SIEGEL 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: WYNNE 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, RODARMEL 
 



3 
 

City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Laws, City Attorney Avedisian; Public 
Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director 
Silva; Police Chief Smith; Project Manager Holwell; Quad Knopf Planner Brandt; City Clerk 
Venegas. 
 
Emergency Item Added: 
 
City Manager Laws requested that the following Emergency Item 2-6 be added to the Consent 
Calendar as information was received after the 9/16/14 agenda was posted. 
 
2-6 Approval – Letter of Support for Fallen Pilot Nathan Poloski 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Rodarmel to add Item 2-6 to 
the Consent Calendar. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Rodarmel, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 
 

 
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 

There was no ceremonial/presentations. 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – September 2, 2014 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – September 12, 2014 
2-3  Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – September 12, 2014 
2-4 Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable 
 Obligation Payment Schedule – September 12, 2014 
2-5 Approval – Successor Agency – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
 January – June 2015 (ROPS 14-15B) 
2-6 Approval – Letter of Support for Fallen Pilot Nathan Poloski 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Madrigal to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Madrigal, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Second Reading – Ordinance 2014-04 – Planning Commission Recommendation to 

Amend 9-5-D1 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to the Rules and 
Regulations Applicable to Landscape Standards for New Commercial, Residential, 
and Industrial Development Projects to Promote Greater Water Conservation 

 
Quad Knopf Planner Brandt presented the report and reminded Council of the prohibition of 
fescue in the amendment. 
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:34 p.m. 
No one spoke. 
Public Hearing closed at 7:34 p.m. 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to waive the second 
reading of Ordinance 2014-04 amending 9-5-D1 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to the 
Rules and Regulations Applicable to Landscape Standards for New Commercial, Residential, and 
Industrial Development Projects to Promote Greater Water Conservation.  
  
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Madrigal, Neal 
Noes: Siegel 
 
3-2 First Reading – Continuation Request – General Plan Amendment and Zone Change 

for B&L Moving and Storage 
 
Quad Knopf Planner Brandt presented the report.  This item was properly noticed in the paper 
but the notices did not get sent out to the residents.  If continued, this item does not have to be 
noticed again. 
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:37 p.m. 
No one spoke. 
Public Hearing closed at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to continue the item 
to the October 7, 2014 regular session of the City Council to allow time for the required notices to 
be mailed. 
  
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – Lemoore Kings Lions Club Request to Rename 19th 

Avenue Park to “Kings Lions Complex” 
 
Jeff Garcia and Tom Reed spoke. 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to support the 
recommendation by the Parks and Recreation Commission and approve the request from the 
Kings Lions Club to rename 19th Avenue Park to “Kings Lions Complex” and waive the Policy 
Guide for the Naming of Public Parks and Recreation Facilities. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel 



5 
 

 
Staff was directed to update the Policy Guide for the Naming of Public Parks and Recreation 
Facilities. 
 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Budget Amendment – Asset Replacement for 

Lemoore Police Department Patrol Unit 97 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Neal to approve the 
purchase of one 2014 Dodge Charger and the necessary equipment to be used on patrol to 
replace Unit 97. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Neal, Madrigal, Wynne, Siegel 
 
4-3 Report and Recommendation – Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Employees 

– Resolution 2014-26 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Madrigal to adopt Resolution 
2014-26 Authorizing Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Management Employees and 
authorize the necessary budget adjustments to accommodate its adoption. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Madrigal, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 
4-4 Report and Recommendation – Reorganization of Lemoore City Council 
 
Spoke: 
 Kathleen Elias 
 Richard Valle, District II, Kings County Board of Supervisors 
 Holly Andrade Blair 
 Dwight Young 
 Jane Dart 
 Sheila Taylor 
 Myeisha Neal 
 Rosie Madrigal 
 Tom Reed 
 Angela Mejia 
 
Motion by Council Member Neal, seconded by Council Member Madrigal to approve council 
realignment. 
 
Ayes: Neal, Madrigal, Rodarmel, Wynne 
Noes: Siegel 
 
City Attorney Avedisian accepted nominations for Mayor.  Council Member Wynne was nominated 
by Council Member Madrigal.  There were no other nominations. 
 
Motion by Council Member Madrigal, seconded by Council Member Neal for appoint Wynne as 
Mayor. 
 
Ayes: Madrigal, Neal, Rodarmel, Wynne 
Abstain: Siegel 
 
City Attorney Avedisian accepted nominations for Mayor Pro Tem.  Council Member Rodarmel 
was nominated by Council Member Wynn.  There were no other nominations. 
 



6 
 

Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Madrigal to appoint Rodarmel 
as Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Madrigal, Neal, Rodarmel 
Abstain: Siegel 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson informed Council that Parks and Recreation was 
awarded the San Joaquin Architect and Planners Aware for the reuse of the CMC building and a 
luncheon will be held on October 3rd for this accomplishment. 
 
He also reminded everyone about Evening under the Stars on Saturday, September 20th from 
7pm to midnight. 
 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 
City Manager Laws and all department heads will not be available September 25th and 26th.  They 
will be attending Team Building in town. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports 
No Council Reports. 
 
6-2 City Council Requests 
 
Council Member Madrigal stated the reorganization had to be done. 
 
Council Member Neal thanked everyone for attending.  He is not happy that someone was sent 
in to try to belittle him but it did not happen.  He does not care that he looks bad as long as he 
knows what he is doing is right. 
 
Council Member Siegel stated Riley Jones who lives east of the golf course asked for annexation 
of properties due to a water issue as they are currently in the County. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodarmel reviewed the city water production report and he commends and thanks 
the citizen of the City of Lemoore for reducing water usage.  Battle of the Badges is November 
11th from 3-7pm at the Civic Auditorium.  Stated spoke with Jerry from Ethel Reds and he said he 
was not only competing with other restaurants but also service organization and the Chamber. 
 
Mayor Wynne stated she was up for the new challenge and hopes everyone supports her.  She 
is glad that everyone is here to be supportive of the City and we all need to be a team and share 
ideas.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Connie Wlaschin asked about the placement of the letter from Gordon from the August 19th 
Council meeting.  She stated it was difficult to find and if the items received after the agenda 
posted could be placed on the web in an easier manner to find. 



7 
 

 
City Manager Laws will have to research.  However, the staff reports will now have the date the 
report was written along with the meeting date in order for the staff reports for a specific council 
meeting to be more easily identifiable. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

 
At 8:56 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 10/03/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4211 − CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21 15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN 26.25 .00 COPIER/PRINTER
3 /15 10/03/14 21 23662 5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 3,805.00 .00 PROF SERVICES AUG14
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 3,831.25 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 3,831.25 .00

RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:05 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-2



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             727866349001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    174.89               .00 POST−IT/FOLDERS          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            174.89               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             23662        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              2,381.75               .00 PROF SERVICES AUG14      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             23662        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                −56.00               .00 INV #19600               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9404210766   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 34.10               .00 SHREDDING SERVICE        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,359.85               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0000156452   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                104.11               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            104.11               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 37.16               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                317.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760294 5516 AT&T                             29.28               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            383.52               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                756.09               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 78.35               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            834.44               .00

4825AR   MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             XJJP1TKR9    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO              1,661.31               .00 NETSHELTER               
TOTAL    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE                                .00          1,661.31               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          5,518.12               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:05                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SOP37596     6086 CPS HR CONSULTIN                480.12               .00 CLERICAL EXAM            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9404211028   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 16.20               .00 SHREDDING SERVICES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             87752        5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S                458.92               .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            955.24               .00

4315     INSURANCE/BONDS          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             RMA−2015−067 0123 CSJVRMA                      40,299.00               .00 LIABILITY PRGM 2ND QR    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             RMA−2015−067 0123 CSJVRMA                      88,301.00               .00 WRK’S COMP 2ND QRT       
TOTAL    INSURANCE/BONDS                                         .00        128,600.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                117.88               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760294 5516 AT&T                             18.32               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            136.20               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                144.75               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                139.73               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            284.48               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00        129,975.92               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:06                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208063      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.20               .00 TWINE                    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75112        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 15.36               .00 PVC CEMENT               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75199        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                114.75               .00 TWO PIECE QVC            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75237        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                268.17               .00 BATTERY OP CONTROLLE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75297        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 41.30               .00 GALV NIPPLE              
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208073      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 60.72               .00 DUCT TAPE/GLUE           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186647      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 39.29               .00 842−PAINT/STENCIL SET    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186676      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.84               .00 REDU BUSHING             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208427      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.61               .00 PVC CEMENT               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186791      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                243.27               .00 CONCRETE MIX             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208489      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 34.68               .00 DRILL BIT                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186837      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 55.07               .00 TWINE /DRILL BITS        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186932      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.08               .00 DUSTER                   
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187092      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                185.39               .00 SG PASTEL BASE           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208805      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.44               .00 TRITAP ADAPTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187120      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.06               .00 PRIMER SPRAY             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208865      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 13.95               .00 WHT PLAS PAIL            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             51694        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR               −145.07               .00 FIXCUT 25/30             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             71004        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                145.07               .00 FIXCUT 25/30             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             51695        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                125.07               .00 AUTOCUT 25               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             71007*       0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR               −116.06               .00 FIXCUT 25                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208393      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 36.28               .00 ROLL REFILL/FRAME        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209179      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.27               .00 SHOCK                    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A185864      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 38.92               .00 ALK BATTERIES/SHARPIE    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A185820      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.90               .00 FLASHING                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207668      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.69               .00 PORC REDUC BUSHING       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186195      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.06               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186227      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 77.14               .00 BASE PAINT/NUTS/BOLTS    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186278      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 29.76               .00 FLT NTRL BASE            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207985      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 54.18               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208894      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.30               .00 WOOL PAD                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208928      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 16.11               .00 ALK BATTERY              
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208990      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 42.81               .00 SWITCH BOX/NMB CABLE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208997      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 53.74               .00 OSCIL TOOL KIT           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187283      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 24.48               .00 SPADE BIT SET            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209193      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 14.60               .00 RAID ROACH KILLER        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187609      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.15               .00 FBG TAPE/WORK BOX        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209319      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.22               .00 GLASS FUSE               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187674      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.61               .00 AIR FILTER               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187698      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 41.90               .00 DECK SCREW/SAND          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             61712420     6356 ULINE                           444.84               .00 PLASTIC RECEPTACLE       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             61648782     6356 ULINE                           162.72               .00 TRASH LINERS             
3 /15 10/03/14 21             545542       5573 CENTRAL SANITARY                366.03               .00 WHITE ROLL TOWEL         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             23793700     0091 CARROT−TOP INDUS                448.04               .00 US & CALIFORNIA FLAG     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             3282−4       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                433.06               .00 TURF STRIPER             
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2499−5       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                295.33               .00 PRIME WHITE              

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:06                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES        (cont’d)
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2514−5       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                245.64               .00 PRIME WHITE              
3 /15 10/03/14 21             728626312001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     97.01               .00 CORK BOARD               
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          4,213.98               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             68547        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                375.34               .00 MS 192TC−E14             
3 /15 10/03/14 21             21489        6117 SIGN WORKS                      609.00               .00 METAL DOCUMENT BOXES     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             71377        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                725.01               .00 MS261Z18/CHAINLOOP       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75332        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 19.82               .00 SLIP FIX                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             9302742249   6511 LAWSON PRODUCTS,                550.00               .00 HOLE SAW                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187483      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                206.34               .00 TRASH CANS               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186186      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                103.16               .00 TRASH CANS               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208902      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 85.96               .00 OUTLET                   
4 /15 10/03/14 21             4226         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST              1,960.14               .00 STAINLESS STEEL          
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          4,634.77               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21             1275769      5287 RES COM PEST CON                 38.00               .00 411 W. "D"/VETS HALL     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0066558      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 119 FOX ST. CITY HALL    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0066565      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 657 FOX ST PD STATION    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0066559      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 711 CINNAMON DR./CMC     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0066560      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 210 FOX/FIRE STATION     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             15422        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS             13,527.25               .00 AUGUST SERVICES          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             8/14−9/14    T1595 HANNSSELTHILL CA               265.00               .00 WEEKEND ATTENDANT        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 42.84               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0066562      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 75.00               .00 435 "C" ST CIVIC         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             8/14−9/14    6283 ERIK SURWILL                    720.00               .00 JANITORIAL REC SENTER    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         14,968.09               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 94.04               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             AUG−SEP14    0423 THE GAS COMPANY                 296.56               .00 08/19/2014−09/18/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            390.60               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             210424       1257 GIBSON ENTERPRIS              1,572.90               .00 ELECTRIFIED CONTROL      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23056        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 2,020.91               .00 CIP 15−CMC KITCHEN       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             1371         6506 GOPHER GRABBERS                 150.00               .00 RODENT SERVICE           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23089        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 2,230.79               .00 REC−RUN CAT 5E           
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          5,974.60               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 19.57               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.89               .00 POSTAGE                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             64.34               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES          (cont’d)

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             443455       2362 PATRICK ENTERPRI                500.00               .00 SOIL ANALYSIS            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23121        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,225.41               .00 19TH AVE PARK            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23120        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 3,939.27               .00 BOOSTER PUMP 19TH AVE    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23100        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,323.65               .00 FERTILIZER SYS/19TH      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23113        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 2,626.01               .00 19TH AVE/BOOSTER PUMP    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             11005        0460 VALLEY PUMP & DA                180.00               .00 BOOSTER PUMP/19TH        
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00          9,794.34               .00

4850     CIP                      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             44427        1347 DIAMOND CUT GLAS                173.69               .00 CIP 15−LAMINATE CLEAR    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             2636−2       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                392.91               .00 CIP 15−PAINT             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             3543−9       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                825.44               .00 CIP 15−PAINT             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5516         1216 C.B.S. DOORS                    892.52               .00 HUNG DOOR                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5525         1216 C.B.S. DOORS                     60.00               .00 CUT DOWN DOORS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             5503         1216 C.B.S. DOORS                    749.31               .00 PRE−HUNG DOORS/CIVIC     
TOTAL    CIP                                                     .00          3,093.87               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         43,134.59               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             XJJMR9R34    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO              1,148.36               .00 COMPUTER                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             XJJKPTPM4    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO                 15.96               .00 SURGE POWER CORD         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             121119       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA              2,288.57               .00 HARDWARE/ANTENNA         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5072         3010 THE ANIMAL HOUSE                 75.20               .00 DOG FOOD                 
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          3,528.09               .00

4220U    OPERAT SUPPLIES− UNIFORMS
4 /15 10/03/14 21             061601       0650 LORD’S UNIFORMS                 134.27               .00 UNIFORMS/DROKER          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             063387       0650 LORD’S UNIFORMS                  12.79               .00 UNIFORMS/DROKER          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             10262        6449 ARROWHEAD EMBLEM              1,706.75               .00 LEM PD SHOULDER PATCH    
TOTAL    OPERAT SUPPLIES− UNIFORMS                               .00          1,853.81               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21             14−013       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                793.76               .00 BCKGRND INVESTIGATIO     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             14−014       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                848.64               .00 BCKGRN INVESTIGATION     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             9404244212   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                138.73               .00 SHREDDING SERVICE        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             14−012       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                784.80               .00 BCKGRND INVESTIGATION    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2014−279     6246 COPLOGIC                      5,250.00               .00 YEARLY SOFTWARE MAINT    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             001−001299   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              13,902.61               .00 DISPATCH SRVC/OCT.       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             269114       6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              1,500.00               .00 DISPATCH CENTER/OCT      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             JULYSERVICES 0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,481.95               .00 TECH COMM SERVICES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             AUG SERVICES 0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,481.88               .00 TECH COMM SERVICES       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         32,182.37               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0000156439   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                219.67               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             08012014     0772 COUNTY OF KINGS                  36.75               .00 PRINT SHOP               
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            256.42               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO              1,534.03               .00 COMM SERVICES            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731236174   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                918.40               .00 AUG 02 − SEP 01          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760291 5516 AT&T                             18.73               .00 559−924−3116             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005768539 5516 AT&T                            186.33               .00 234−267−8470             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             9732184679   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS              1,004.06               .00 AUG 17 − SEP 16          
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          3,661.55               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             10774694−95  0719 FRESNO CITY COLL                190.00               .00 REGISTRATION/FTO         
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            190.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                136.87               .00 POSTAGE                  
4 /15 10/03/14 21             262261670    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                793.17               .00 PD COPIER                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             261408611    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                168.16               .00 PD PRINTER               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             308000       1817 C.A. REDING COMP              1,120.01               .00 PD PRINTER               

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES          (cont’d)
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          2,218.21               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4154         6398 DURATECH USA, IN              1,388.75               .00 SURFACE MOUNT            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4156         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                406.25               .00 EXTERNAL CELL ANTENNA    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4157         6398 DURATECH USA, IN              1,192.00               .00 POWER SUPPLY             
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4160         6398 DURATECH USA, IN             49,511.71               .00 INTEL PROCESSOR          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4155         6398 DURATECH USA, IN              5,163.75               .00 BASE LOWER               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     6398 DURATECH USA, IN             57,662.46               .00 DATA TERMINALS           
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00        115,324.92               .00

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00        159,215.37               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             1327698−00   0126 L.N. CURTIS & SO                202.23               .00 MASK WIPES               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208100      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 67.14               .00 SCREWDRIVER SET          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208312      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 31.99               .00 FLASHLIGHT/SPONGE        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208510      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.66               .00 EXTENSION CORD           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187125      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.75               .00 BLUE TAPE                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186646      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 47.20               .00 PLAS PAIL/LID/TAPE       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186777      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 16.71               .00 BOLT SNAP/EYE BOLT       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187275      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.65               .00 FEM CONNECTOR            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186229      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.18               .00 FLY INSECT KILLER        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208883      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 42.76               .00 MOTION SENSE CONTROL     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            473.27               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209410      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.05               .00 POLE TOG SWITCH          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207880      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.26               .00 HOLE SAW                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186168      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.10               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00             29.41               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             001−001299   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              10,426.95               .00 DISPATCH SRVC/OCT.       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,426.95               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  3.98               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                143.23               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005768542 5516 AT&T                             92.07               .00 234−371−7008             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            239.28               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             87194        6515 COMPLETE WIRELES                140.00               .00 REPAIR RADIO             
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            140.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 30.51               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 10.38               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             40.89               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         11,349.80               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             15384        6405 I DESIGN & PRINT                119.05               .00 BUILDING INSPECTION      
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            119.05               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 25.35               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             25.35               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 66.37               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                   .94               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             95.05               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00            239.45               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:07                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5795         0463 VIDEO INSPECTION              3,333.65               .00 TV INSPECT/TRACT 752     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             23662        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              8,910.96               .00 PROF SERVICES AUG14      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             77186        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                347.76               .00 TRACT 752                
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         12,592.37               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0000156674   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 85.77               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0000156544   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 94.45               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             0000156736   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 86.58               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            266.80               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 83.29               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 65.04               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            148.33               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 96.23               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 71.37               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 17.46               .00 POSTAGE                  
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                   .94               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            213.74               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00         13,221.24               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4231 − STREETS                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             2877−442262  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                150.77               .00 25A/CL/120V              
4 /15 10/03/14 21             2877−234193  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY               −177.38               .00 25CAC/L/120V             
3 /15 10/03/14 21             64185        3091 JAM SERVICES, IN                149.08               .00 RED BALL/ARROW LEDS      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2877−441947  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                196.08               .00 25A/CL/120V              
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            318.55               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP678006815 0363 P G & E                          82.04               .00 08/15/2014−09/15/2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP360627227 0363 P G & E                       6,628.90               .00 08/19/2014−09/17/2014    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP839922818 0363 P G & E                          53.73               .00 08/26/2014−09/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          6,764.67               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23080        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,415.73               .00 NEW WIRE/FUSE HOLDERS    
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,415.73               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  2.36               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00              2.36               .00

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00          8,501.31               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186956      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.41               .00 CAUTION TAPE             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209237      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 31.15               .00 GALV STL RND TUB         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             731520078001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     75.24               .00 BOX,CASH,W/TRAY          
4 /15 10/03/14 21 6813    −01 K−4837       6482 THE AMERICAN GYM              8,467.00         −8,467.00 ASSEMBLED SPRING FLOOR   
4 /15 10/03/14 21 6813    −02 K−4837       6482 THE AMERICAN GYM                425.00           −425.00 VINYL FLOOR SKIRTING     
4 /15 10/03/14 21 6813    −03 K−4837       6482 THE AMERICAN GYM              1,108.00         −1,108.00 SHIPPING                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             96327073     1930 BSN SPORTS                      384.23               .00 SPORTS GEAR              
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         10,511.03        −10,000.00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     5665 EMILY BAKER                   1,478.17               .00 TINY TOES DANCE 2014     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             8/14−9/14    T1595 HANNSSELTHILL CA               362.50               .00 REC CENTER ATTENDANT     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     5614 CHRISTINA DE LA                 185.50               .00 ZUMBA SEPTEMBER 2014     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             23662        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                465.00               .00 PROF SERVICES AUG14      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     5674 JENNIFER MELENDE                449.75               .00 CHEERLEADING SEP 14      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     6257 RYAN ROCHA                    6,202.00               .00 CROSSFIT SEPT.2014       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     6229 TARA RODRIGUEZ                  154.00               .00 KINDERMUSIK SEPT 2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     6505 VANESSA GONZALEZ                429.80               .00 DRAMA SEPTEMBER 2014     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     5962 JASON GLASPIE                   513.90               .00 BOXING CULB SEPT 2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     6371 MANUEL VELARDE                  245.00               .00 KARATE SEPTEMBER 2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     5235 STATE DISBURSEME                324.00               .00 SEPT CHILD SUPPORT       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     T1329 JENNIFER SHELDON                28.00               .00 PEE WEE PAINT SEP14      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09232014     T1329 JENNIFER SHELDON                58.80               .00 PEE WEE FITNESS SEP14    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             09302014     6517 MARIO MORENO                    476.00               .00 BALLROOM DANCING 9/14    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         11,372.42               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                131.23               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                147.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            278.31               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                404.28               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 11.80               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            416.08               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00         22,577.84        −10,000.00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        397,564.89        −10,000.00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726R − 19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
3 /15 10/03/14 21             77173        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              5,203.60               .00 CIP10−19 1/2 SIDEWLK     
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          5,203.60               .00

TOTAL    19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE                               .00          5,203.60               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00          5,203.60               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 034 − GAS TAX SECTION 2103     
BUDGET UNIT − 4734D − STREET OVERLAYS 14/15    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
3 /15 10/03/14 21             77168        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              2,156.85               .00 CIP#2− OVERLAY           
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          2,156.85               .00

TOTAL    STREET OVERLAYS 14/15                                   .00          2,156.85               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2103                                    .00          2,156.85               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2209699      5441 ELBERT DISTRIBUT                 72.90               .00 FUEL INDUCTION           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             3918−207602  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                140.61               .00 AIR FILTER               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             CALEM12471   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                322.08               .00 EYE WASH STATION         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 17.24               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             53009        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                 58.95               .00 PADS SET                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             50881        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                211.17               .00 TORQUE ROD               
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            822.95               .00

4220CNG  CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES   
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5−300818     0858 STATE BOARD OF E                816.00               .00 ANN FLAT RATE FUELTAX    
TOTAL    CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES                                  .00            816.00               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             91502        0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             10,861.67               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00         10,861.67               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             C06368       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                512.44               .00 PRESSURE SLOT CURT       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             C06367       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                135.26               .00 ELECTRONIC THROTT        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             D09420       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                 41.21               .00 SCREE 3"Y−STRAIN         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4−245261     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 141.87               .00 C−8D 12V−COMMERCIAL      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4−245965     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 181.83               .00 C−31−8ST/12V−GRP13       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4−245964     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 272.74               .00 C−31−8ST/12V−GRP31       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4−245337     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                  78.01               .00 78DT−75/34/78            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             50027325     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                171.94               .00 PUMP ASY                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             50027640     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                497.80               .00 MOTOR/FAN/RELAY          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             50027341     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 43.20               .00 V−BELT                   
3 /15 10/03/14 21             69809        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                221.58               .00 FUEL PUMP/HARNESS        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             69381        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                138.72               .00 FUEL TANK/HARNESS        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             1315688      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  33.86               .00 CUT 10’                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             PI29060B     0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                294.90               .00 JCB 827/20265            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             PI29162      0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                 51.88               .00 KEY−SET                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             PI29162A     0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                 27.13               .00 KEY−SET                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             PI29162B     0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                 16.77               .00 KEY                      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F001862308:0 1505 FRESNO TRUCK CEN                285.57               .00 MOTOR WHEEL ASSY         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             62624        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                634.77               .00 RADIATOR/MOTOR RAD       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             6671         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                  111.80               .00 CAUTION SIGN 2’ X 4’     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             50027344     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 23.65               .00 SWITCH ASY               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             5025219      2671 KELLER MOTORS                   187.95               .00 SL+N−HOSE                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             5025242      2671 KELLER MOTORS                   195.54               .00 N−BELT KIT               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             50027573     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                395.23               .00 MOTOR ASY/REGULATOR      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F001859153   1505 FRESNO TRUCK CEN                185.91               .00 ALTNTR 12V 145 AMP       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             15041908     1937 FORK LIFT SPECIA                119.65               .00 HOSE 50FT/HOSE REEL      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             65732        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF               2,759.74               .00 CYLINDER HALF PACK       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             65738        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF               2,759.74               .00 CYLINDER HALF PACK       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F001862596   1505 FRESNO TRUCK CEN                 14.23               .00 SWITCH−BLOWER, HVAC      

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:08                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15042237     1937 FORK LIFT SPECIA                481.77               .00 BREAKTHROUGH (55 GAL)    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5025945      2671 KELLER MOTORS                    21.85               .00 SL−N−HOSE                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             70996        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                 78.99               .00 CHAINLOOP                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             1317453      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                 122.08               .00 HR SHEET 10GA            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5025943      2671 KELLER MOTORS                    40.82               .00 SL−N−CONTAINER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             7557         1213 SCELZI ENTERPRIS                132.23               .00 TALL BAER STAKES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5348727371   6145 AUTO ZONE                       274.11               .00 DURALAST ALTERNATOR      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             103623       6513 A−1 AUTO ELECTRI                 21.00               .00 DIAGNOSE ENGINE          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F001862596   1505 FRESNO TRUCK CEN                 14.23               .00 SWITCH−BLOWER            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5025875      2671 KELLER MOTORS                    13.09               .00 SL−N−SEAL                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             5025944      2671 KELLER MOTORS                    51.44               .00 SL−N−PUMP KIT            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             48798        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA               −282.47               .00 RETURN INV #32789        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             49769        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                 29.25               .00 DRAIN VALVE              
4 /15 10/03/14 21             49770        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                 29.25               .00 DRAIN VALVE              
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00         11,562.56               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  3.67               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.83               .00 COMM SERVICES            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             98.38               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             CHCS84994    6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER              1,119.35               .00 GASKET/INSULATOR         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             4096964      6370 HERWALDT MOTORSP                605.69               .00 REPAIR LIGHT/BRAKE       
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,725.04               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23090        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   360.00               .00 FLEET−TIRE BALANCER      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23054        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,138.16               .00 SHOP−CHANGE BRAKERS      
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00          1,498.16               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         27,384.76               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         27,384.76               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:09                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000K    COST OF REVENUE−KITCHEN  
4 /15 10/03/14 21             01680075     6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 250.40               .00 417−SODA CASES           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             10012014     6465 RICHARD RHOADS                  749.40               .00 417−REIM/VALLEYWIDE      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             10012014     6465 RICHARD RHOADS                1,221.10               .00 417−REIM/SEQUOIA BEV     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             409251007    6440 SYSCO                           233.31               .00 416−FOOD SUPPLIES        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             409251007    6440 SYSCO                            95.99               .00 685−CLEANING SUPPLIES    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             1960916      6451 SNAK CLUB IN.                   223.20               .00 415−SNACK BAR            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             09112014     6465 RICHARD RHOADS                  464.35               .00 417−REIM/SEQUOIA BEV     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             30350357     6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 612.30               .00 417−GATORAIDE/WATER      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             30350356     6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 174.92               .00 SODA CASES               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             409181072    6440 SYSCO                           361.18               .00 416 KITCHEN SUPPLIES     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4007752      6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 129.80               .00 417−SODA CASES           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             40077753     6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 358.75               .00 417−GATORADE/WATER       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09112014     6465 RICHARD RHOADS                  552.20               .00 417−REIM/VALLEYWIDE      
3 /15 10/03/14 21             409111127    6440 SYSCO                           128.08               .00 441−PRODUCE              
3 /15 10/03/14 21             409111127    6440 SYSCO                           500.18               .00 416−PRODUCE              
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−KITCHEN                                 .00          6,055.16               .00

4000P    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             1130471−01   6453 GLOBAL TOUR GOLF                102.12               .00 531 BALLS                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             00394431     6473 GOLF TIME, LLC                   35.57               .00 531−APEX HC              
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0122722      6450 TITLEIST                        524.03               .00 533−GOLF BALLS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0115635      6450 TITLEIST                         98.84               .00 551−DRIVER SHAFT         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             16218        6514 BLACK CLOVER ENT                815.38               .00 549− HATS                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             916445       6509 DYNAMIC BRANDS                1,022.00               .00 531−WHITE PUSH CART      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             IN1055867    6508 US KIDS GOLF, LL                140.28               .00 536−5 CLUB BAG SET       
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP                                .00          2,738.22               .00

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187353      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,                619.17               .00 854−FILL RITE PUMP       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A431814      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,                177.15               .00 851−UNLEADED GAS 45GL    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A431815      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,              1,604.01               .00 851−DIESEL FUEL 430GL    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             2841195      6450 TITLEIST                        400.00               .00 741−SUREFIT FEE          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8467967      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM              1,668.06               .00 832−HERBICIDE            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8462587      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM                 99.62               .00 832− CELSIUS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8462586      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM              1,489.85               .00 832−HERBICIDE/ROUNDUP    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             409181072    6440 SYSCO                           108.06               .00 444 TOWEL                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             409181072    6440 SYSCO                            43.38               .00 685 FOOD                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             CALEM12422   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                260.15               .00 841−CORDLESSGREASEGUN    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          6,469.45               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21             09302014     T1355 RHOADS, RICH                   240.00               .00 725−REIMB GOLF LESSON    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             4977524      6447 PNC EQUIPMENT FI              4,554.88               .00 966−EQUIPMENT            
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,794.88               .00

4340     UTILITIES                

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:09                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP836697781 0363 P G & E                         849.06               .00 871−GOLF SEP             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP720810770 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 871−*GOLF SEP            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760293 5516 AT&T                             15.21               .00 628−559−924−6317         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760295 5516 AT&T                             88.30               .00 628−559−924−6584         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760290 5516 AT&T                             19.93               .00 628−559−924−1330         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP−GOLF     0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  15.78               .00 672−17111591/GOLF SEP    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             563          0297 LEMOORE CANAL &                 184.00               .00 872−CANAL ASSESSMENT     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP59100     0423 THE GAS COMPANY                 122.01               .00 671 GOLF                 
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,304.80               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             774143       6490 JACOBSEN WEST                   448.41               .00 841−BELTS/SPRING         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             31526        6503 FARMLOAD DISTRIB                256.60               .00 841−MOWER BLADE          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             6864934−00   5379 TURF STAR                        50.40               .00 841−BALL JOINT           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             6865049−00   5379 TURF STAR                       316.45               .00 844−PISTONS/SPRINKLER    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             6865171−00   5379 TURF STAR                        25.55               .00 841−FILTER               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             77921        2292 CENTRAL VALLEY G                209.35               .00 841−AXLE WELDMENT        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             6865814−00   5379 TURF STAR                        75.85               .00 841−NUT − SPLINED        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             44181        5804 CHADS AUTO GLASS                300.00               .00 842− GLASS INSTALL       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23053        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   834.03               .00 631−SNACK BAR HOOD       
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          2,516.64               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00         23,879.15               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00         23,879.15               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:09                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207986      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 14.37               .00 BLEACH/ADJ SPRAYER       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207893      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.93               .00 ADJ SPRAYER              
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B207975      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.55               .00 ALK BATTERIES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187606      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.22               .00 STATE BRAKLEEN           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809861     6058 UNIVAR                        1,127.15               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809857     6058 UNIVAR                        1,584.62               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809858     6058 UNIVAR                        1,323.20               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809856     6058 UNIVAR                        2,238.16               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75052        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 96.64               .00 PVC HAND PUMP            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9009510      0190 HACH COMPANY                    593.15               .00 CHLORINE                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0433172−IN   0016 ALERT−O−LITE                     42.22               .00 MARKING PAINT BLUE       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0433172−IN   0016 ALERT−O−LITE                     42.22               .00 MARKING PAINT BLUE       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             0433290−IN   0016 ALERT−O−LITE                    126.64               .00 MARKING PAINT BLUE       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809315     6058 UNIVAR                          735.03               .00 SODIUM,FUEL.MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809312     6058 UNIVAR                          944.15               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809313     6058 UNIVAR                        1,767.61               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0809317     6058 UNIVAR                        2,140.12               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             445197       2038 USA BLUEBOOK                    153.69               .00 TELESCOPE GATE WRENCH    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             439200       2038 USA BLUEBOOK                    349.70               .00 METER BOX LID LIFTERS    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808769     6058 UNIVAR                        1,192.49               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808776     6058 UNIVAR                        2,499.58               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808775     6058 UNIVAR                        1,649.97               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808742     6058 UNIVAR                        1,061.80               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808778     6058 UNIVAR                        2,061.70               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             F0808195     6058 UNIVAR                        1,323.20               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6815    −01 I−041908     1116 GOLDEN STATE FLO              6,967.50         −6,967.50 CHAMBER METER R2 CF RESOL
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6815    −03 I−041908     1116 GOLDEN STATE FLO                522.56           −522.56 TAX                      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         30,594.17         −7,490.06

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9535225909   0521 GRAINGER                         69.18               .00 AXIAL FAN                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             915772       0936 FRESNO PIPE AND                 225.41               .00 PVC SPEARS               
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2008         2907 HYDEC                           825.16               .00 DISC DISTRIBUTOR ASSY    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186338      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 47.44               .00 DRILL BIT/NUTS & BOLT    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75104        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 45.26               .00 1" SCH80 F/A             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75190        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 74.05               .00 PVC PIPE CUTTER          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75308        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                115.46               .00 4’ CAP SEWER PVC         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75374        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 51.47               .00 GALV NIPPLE/GAL UNION    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75408        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 14.58               .00 1" SCH80 F/A/COUPLING    
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75430        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 46.46               .00 1" SCH80F F/A            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186436      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                   .47               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186584      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.19               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208446      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.93               .00 PVC PIPE                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186704      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.11               .00 PVC PIPE                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186707      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.76               .00 COUPLING/SEAL TAPE       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187094      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.72               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:10                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187246      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.05               .00 WASP/HORN SPRAY          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A187401      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.34               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209120      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.09               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186363      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.23               .00 STL ANGLE                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             010D8930     6395 HARRINGTON INDUS                 94.84               .00 ADAPTER TANK             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75033        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 19.08               .00 PVC CEMENT               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75065        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 67.24               .00 GLUE PVC/COUPLING        
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,797.52               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416602      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416692      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                162.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416695      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                380.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416704      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                127.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416875      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416905      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 18.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416956      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416985      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A416986      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417084      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417118      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417294      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417308      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417372      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417375      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417606      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417607      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417708      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 30.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417776      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417837      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417892      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A417893      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418149      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418153      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                153.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418342      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 90.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418621      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             001−001299   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SRVC/OCT.       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             77193        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                131.22               .00 URBAN WATER MANAGMENT    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418641      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418680      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418890      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418891      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 53.13               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418955      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A419028      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 85.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A418339      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             1460124      3040 SWRCB FEES                    4,734.50               .00 ANNUAL PERMIT FEE        

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:10                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC (cont’d)
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,552.50               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             2014−18      6456 VALLEY COUNTIES                 180.00               .00 VCWA/6 MEMBERS           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             09242014     1343 AMERICAN WATER W                244.00               .00 RENEWAL OF AWWA          
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            424.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005768540 5516 AT&T                             96.19               .00 234−371−3714             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             AUG−SEP14    0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  50.00               .00 08/19/2014−09/18/2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP826001193 0363 P G & E                       6,052.15               .00 08/11/2014−09/09/2014    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 34.08               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                234.91               .00 COMM SERVICES            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             AUG82600119* 0363 P G & E                      80,840.59               .00 40 "G" ST 3/14−7/14      
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         87,307.92               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             11292        0460 VALLEY PUMP & DA                 90.00               .00 PUMP LABOR               
4 /15 10/03/14 21             10754        0460 VALLEY PUMP & DA             34,767.00               .00 DISLODGE BOWLS WELL      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00         34,857.00               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09072014     1999 CALIFORNIA RURAL                500.00               .00 WATER CERTIFICATION      
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            500.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                117.88               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  2.36               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            163.12               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        166,196.23         −7,490.06

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:10                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             SOP37596     6086 CPS HR CONSULTIN                480.13               .00 CLERICAL EXAM            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9404211028   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 16.21               .00 SHREDDING SERVICES       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             87752        5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S                458.92               .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            955.26               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             15389        6405 I DESIGN & PRINT                285.41               .00 ORANGE DOORHANGER        
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            285.41               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                117.88               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             000005760294 5516 AT&T                             13.42               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            131.30               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                140.25               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 72.68               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            212.93               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          1,584.90               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        167,781.13         −7,490.06

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186593      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.76               .00 WASP/HORN SPRAY          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208957      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.44               .00 BAR & CHAIN OIL          
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208960      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 LOW PROFILE CHAIN        
3 /15 10/03/14 21             61566341     0169 FRESNO OXYGEN                   189.31               .00 ACETYLENE                
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −01 37209082     5533 WASTEQUIP                     7,970.00         −7,970.00 3 CU YD DUMPSTER         
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −01 37209049     5533 WASTEQUIP                     1,594.00         −1,594.00 3 CU YD DUMPSTER         
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −02 37209082     5533 WASTEQUIP                          .00               .00 2 CU YD DUMPSTER         
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −02 37209049     5533 WASTEQUIP                     7,536.00         −7,536.00 2 CU YD DUMPSTER         
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −03 37209082     5533 WASTEQUIP                       650.00           −650.00 FREIGHT                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −03 37209049     5533 WASTEQUIP                       650.00           −650.00 FREIGHT                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −04 37209082     5533 WASTEQUIP                       597.75           −597.75 TAX                      
3 /15 10/03/14 21 6805    −04 37209049     5533 WASTEQUIP                       684.75           −684.75 TAX                      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         19,903.50        −19,682.50

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             167919       6274 CONSOLIDATED FAB              1,947.37               .00 DUMPSTER LIDS            
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,947.37               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             001−001299   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SRVC/OCT.       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             09122014     T1898 ROY DAVILA                      79.00               .00 REIMB DMV PHYSICAL       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,554.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 35.69               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.83               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             87.52               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 33.78               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.41               .00 POSTAGE                  
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             62.93               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         25,555.97        −19,682.50

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         25,555.97        −19,682.50

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             A186326      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.29               .00 EYE BOLT                 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208350      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.29               .00 SNAP HOOK                
4 /15 10/03/14 21             1316657      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  25.55               .00 STEEL REMNANT            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B208608      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.78               .00 BLK SHARPIE/KNIFE        
4 /15 10/03/14 21             B209086      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 12.86               .00 MASTER PAD KEYBLANK      
4 /15 10/03/14 21             456243       2038 USA BLUEBOOK                    628.41               .00 FLOAT SWITCH             
4 /15 10/03/14 21             75098        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                  6.82               .00 5" SS COUPLING           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             A187347      0068 GARY BURROWS, IN                 78.96               .00 OIL FOR PUMPS            
3 /15 10/03/14 21             437718       2038 USA BLUEBOOK                    418.06               .00 LANYARY W/HARNES         
3 /15 10/03/14 21             437854       2038 USA BLUEBOOK                    489.03               .00 PAINT                    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,671.05               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9174         5140 BOGIE’S PUMP SYS                746.88               .00 LOWER BEARING            
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            746.88               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129130      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129292      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129347      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129385      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                200.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129386      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                335.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129404      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             001−001299   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SRVC/OCT.       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129750      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                200.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129928      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                685.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4129929      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                210.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             412995       6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
3 /15 10/03/14 21             77195        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              6,727.69               .00 LEPRINO                  
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         12,283.34               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
3 /15 10/03/14 21             9731527197   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 42.19               .00 AUG 05 − SEP 04          
3 /15 10/03/14 21             70013SEP14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                225.79               .00 COMM SERVICES            
4 /15 10/03/14 21             SEP489007642 0363 P G & E                      27,746.57               .00 08/15/2014−09/21/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         28,014.55               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 63.98               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
4 /15 10/03/14 21             8802614−SP14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  2.83               .00 POSTAGE                  
3 /15 10/03/14 21             075768227    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 40.35               .00 PRINTER AUGUST           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            107.16               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         42,822.98               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         42,822.98               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 074C − COMM/REC FACILITIES      
BUDGET UNIT − 4630A − CMC COMMERCIAL KITCHEN   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4224         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST              1,960.14               .00 C/O 8−STAINLESS STEEL    
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4223         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST                909.45               .00 C/O 8− BUILD CHANNEL     
3 /15 10/03/14 21             4222         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST              1,818.90               .00 C/O 8− BUILD COUNTER     
4 /15 10/03/14 21             23075        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,628.55               .00 CIP 15−CMC KITCHEN       
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          6,317.04               .00

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
3 /15 10/03/14 21             520126       6397 KAMRAN & COMPANY              1,400.00               .00 DESIGN REC CENTER        
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          1,400.00               .00

TOTAL    CMC COMMERCIAL KITCHEN                                  .00          7,717.04               .00

TOTAL    COMM/REC FACILITIES                                     .00          7,717.04               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 075 − FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE  
BUDGET UNIT − 4775A − FALLING WATER PIPES−CMC  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
4 /15 10/03/14 21             010282       0005 A−1 ALLSTAR PLUM             20,879.50               .00 C/O 6−REPAIR PIPES       
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00         20,879.50               .00

TOTAL    FALLING WATER PIPES−CMC                                 .00         20,879.50               .00

TOTAL    FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE                                 .00         20,879.50               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                  7.85               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     36.55               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    283.39               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            327.79               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00            327.79               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4803 − LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     58.80               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             58.80               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES                                .00             58.80               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   31
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4805 − LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                      5.49               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              5.49               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER                                  .00              5.49               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   32
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4806 − LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                      6.04               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              6.04               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                  .00              6.04               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   33
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4807 − LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     12.60               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             12.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO                                   .00             12.60               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   34
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4808 − LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     64.96               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             64.96               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL                               .00             64.96               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   35
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4809 − LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     17.21               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             17.21               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE                               .00             17.21               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   36
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4810 − LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     57.73               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             57.73               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00             57.73               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   37
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4811 − LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                      5.84               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              5.84               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN                               .00              5.84               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   38
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4812 − LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    243.79               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            243.79               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00            243.79               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   39
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4813 − LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     15.05               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             15.05               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE                                .00             15.05               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   40
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815A − PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     31.18               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     36.55               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    180.01               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            247.74               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING                                 .00            247.74               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   41
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    497.77               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            497.77               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00            497.77               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   42
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815C − PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    159.73               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            159.73               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10                                    .00            159.73               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:11                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   43
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815D − PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                     58.99               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             58.99               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW                                    .00             58.99               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:12                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   44
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815E − PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    504.71               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    201.58               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            706.29               .00

TOTAL    PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK                                  .00            706.29               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:12                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   45
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815F − SAGECREST ESTATES        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             072122       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    131.02               .00 BACKFLOW TESTS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            131.02               .00

TOTAL    SAGECREST ESTATES                                       .00            131.02               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00          2,616.84               .00

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:12                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   46
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:47:05                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
4 /15 10/03/14 21             15866186     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .19               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00               .19               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
3 /15 10/03/14 21             140902       6337 LEON SECURITY CO                300.00               .00 FRIDAY NIGHT MARKET      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            300.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            300.19               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            300.19               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        723,862.90        −37,172.56

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:47:12                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 09:51:36                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’1011’ and ’2021’AND transact.yr=’15’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

1550     PREPAID EXPENSE          
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   31,768.59                    VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    PREPAID EXPENSE                                                 31,768.59               .00

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                                     31,768.59  VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         31,768.59

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                    31,768.59         31,768.59

TOTAL REPORT                                                             31,768.59         31,768.59

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:51:36                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 09:49:32                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.yr=’15’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              5674 JENNIFER MELENDEZ                    40.00                    REIMB SEP 14             
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                                  224.00  SECURITY/ EUTS           
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                                  240.00  SECURITY 4TH OF JULY     
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6390 PIONEER DRAMA SERVIC                                  171.00  SCRIPT                   
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6482 THE AMERICAN GYM                                      990.00  SHIPPING                 
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6482 THE AMERICAN GYM                                      666.90  TAX                      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              2914 AAA QUALITY SERVICES                                  120.44  POTTY RENTAL/ EUTS       
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              T1900 RENEE FABER                                          100.00  REFUND EUTS TICKETS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5267 KAUNDART, JILL A                                      593.00  PARTY SUPPLIES/EUTS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5267 KAUNDART, JILL A                                      102.27  UTENSILS/EUTS            
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              T492 LEMOORE LIONS CLUB                                    200.00  PYMNT FOR FOOD EUTS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                                        8.89  EXTENSION CORD           
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5626 WEST HILLS COMMUNITY                                  200.00  PYMNT FOR FOOD/EUTS      
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                    40.00          3,616.50

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT       
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              5674 JENNIFER MELENDEZ                                      40.00  REIMB SEP 14             
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6390 PIONEER DRAMA SERVIC                171.00                    SCRIPT                   
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6482 THE AMERICAN GYM                    990.00                    SHIPPING                 
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              6482 THE AMERICAN GYM                    666.90                    TAX                      
TOTAL    RECREATION  IN/OUT                                               1,827.90             40.00

2248A    EVE.UNDER THE STARS 2010 
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                224.00                    SECURITY/ EUTS           
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              2914 AAA QUALITY SERVICES                120.44                    POTTY RENTAL/ EUTS       
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              T1900 RENEE FABER                        100.00                    REFUND EUTS TICKETS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5267 KAUNDART, JILL A                    593.00                    PARTY SUPPLIES/EUTS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5267 KAUNDART, JILL A                    102.27                    UTENSILS/EUTS            
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              T492 LEMOORE LIONS CLUB                  200.00                    PYMNT FOR FOOD EUTS      
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                      8.89                    EXTENSION CORD           
   4 /15 10/03/14  21              5626 WEST HILLS COMMUNITY                200.00                    PYMNT FOR FOOD/EUTS      
TOTAL    EVE.UNDER THE STARS 2010                                         1,548.60               .00

2248B    REC 4TH OF JULY          
   3 /15 10/03/14  21              6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                240.00                    SECURITY 4TH OF JULY     
TOTAL    REC 4TH OF JULY                                                    240.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     3,656.50          3,656.50

TOTAL REPORT                                                              3,656.50          3,656.50

         RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:49:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 10/03/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 09:48:46                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.account between ’3000’ and ’3999’ and transact.batch=’MJ100714’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  4/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL  
   4 /15 10/03/14 21 0        14612        T1899 SHERRI DELEON                  −50.00                   REFUND VETS HALL         
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00            −50.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00            −50.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00            −50.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00            −50.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 10/03/2014 TIME 09:48:46  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: September 30, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: 
Adoption of Resolution 2014-27 Conditionally Approving Cinnamon 
Drive and Docksteader Ditch Project 

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Lemoore has been working to underground the ditch in front of the 
Cinnamon Complex, widen Cinnamon Drive and install sidewalk and street trees. This 
step in the process meets the environmental requirements of CEQA (California 
Environmental Quality Act) by conditionally approving the project, subject to allocation 
of grant funding and a successful bid process.  An approved CEQA document is 
required to obtain final grant funding approval from the State.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The project has already been budgeted for in the City Capital Improvement Program 
using local transportation funds and the State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP.) 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council, by motion, adopt Resolution 2014-27 
conditionally approving the project.  This type of formal approval is a requirement of 
CEQA and a public hearing is not required. 
 
Environmental Assessment 
 
The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  It can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment.  After approval by the City Council, City staff will 
file the Notice of Exemption with the CA Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and 
with the Kings County Clerk. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
RESOLUTION #2014-27 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

CONDITIONALLY APPROVING THE CINNAMON DRIVE AND DOCKSTEADER 
DITCH PROJECT 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on October 
7, 2014, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member_____________, seconded 
by Council Member _____________ and carried that the following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore desires to widen the portion of Cinnamon Drive 
adjacent to the City’s Cinnamon Complex and pipe the existing open ditch; and 
 

WHEREAS, the activity is all within City right of way; and 
 

WHEREAS, funding has been allocated from the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) and local transportation funds (LTF); and 

 
WHEREAS, the project proposes no changes to the operation of the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, a checklist was prepared in accordance with the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA), that determined that the activity has no possibility of having  a significant 
effect on the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission recommended approval after a duly 
noticed public hearing at their August 25, 2014, meeting. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
hereby conditionally approves the Cinnamon Drive and Docksteader Ditch Project subject to 
finalization of the State funding process and a successful bid process. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held 
the 7th day of October 2014 by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 ABSENT: 

 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: September 30, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: 
Adoption of Resolution 2014-28 Adoption of Notice of Exemption in 
Accordance with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Lemoore has been working to underground the ditch in front of the 
Cinnamon Complex, widen Cinnamon Drive and install sidewalk and street trees. This 
step in the process meets the environmental requirements of CEQA (California 
Environmental Quality Act) by conditionally approving the project, subject to allocation 
of grant funding and a successful bid process.  An approved CEQA document is 
required to obtain final grant funding approval from the State.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The project has already been budgeted for in the City Capital Improvement Program 
using local transportation funds and the State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP.) 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council, by motion, adopt Resolution 2014-28 
finding that the activity is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15061(b)(3) and that said activity has no possibility of having a significant effect on the 
environment. 
 
Environmental Assessment 
 
The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  It can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment.  After approval by the City Council, City staff will 
file the Notice of Exemption with the CA Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and 
with the Kings County Clerk. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

RESOLUTION #2014-28 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
ADOPTING AN EXEMPTION FOR THE CINNAMON DRIVE AND DOCKSTEADER 

DITCH PROJECT 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on October 
7, 2014, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member_____________, seconded 
by Council Member_____________ and carried that the following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore desires to widen the portion of Cinnamon Drive 
adjacent to the City’s Cinnamon Complex and pipe the existing open ditch; and 
 

WHEREAS, the activity is all within City right of way; and 
 

WHEREAS, funding has been allocated from the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) and local transportation funds (LTF); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore (City) as Lead Agency, has prepared an Exemption 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and State CEQA Guidelines 
relating to the environmental evaluation of the Cinnamon Drive and Docksteader Ditch Project; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has analyzed the activity and the determination of the Exemption 
pursuant to CEQA and determined that the activity is exempt from CEQA under CEQA 
Guideline 15061(b)(3). 

 
WHEREAS, the City will file a Notice of Exemption with the Kings County Clerk and the 

State Office of Planning and Research. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, in 
compliance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, finds that the activity has been 
conditionally approved (subject to finalization of State funding and a successful bid process) and 
is exempt under CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) and that said activity 
has no possibility of having a significant effect on the environment. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held 
the 7th day of October 2014, by the following votes: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 ABSENT: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 

































































September 22, 2014 

Mayor Lois Wynne and Council Members 
City of Lemoore  
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

RE:  2nd Annual Veterans Day Parade – Tuesday, November 11, 2014 

Dear Mayor Wynne and Council Members: 

The Lemoore Downtown Merchants Association and the Lemoore Recreation Department 
are partnering with the American Legion to host this year’s Veterans Day Parade, Tuesday, 
November 11, 2014 at 6:00 p.m.  It is a great opportunity to honor service men and women 
who have served our country to protect our freedom. 

The Parade line-up will be on Follett between “D” and “G” Streets; and on “E “ and “F” 
Streets between Follett and Fox.  The Parade will begin at the corner of Follett and “D” 
Street and proceed down “D” Street to Hill.  Please see the attached map.  We are 
requesting the City’s assistance with the following: 

1. Street Closure, at 14 locations identified on the attached map.

2. Signs put up along the parade route by 3:00 p.m. Monday November 10 that state
“No Parking or Through Traffic after 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, November 11.  Vehicles will
be towed at owner’s expense”.

3. Ten trash cans at the rear of the Downtown Plaza Park and ten trash cans in the
vacant lot next to Lemoore Furniture by 3:00 p.m. Monday, November 10, that can
be placed along the parade route.   Request that the City pick up on Wednesday,
November 12.

4. Ensure Downtown tree lights are set to come on by 5 p.m. Tuesday, November 11.

5. Deliver barricades as shown on the attached map (XXX = barricades) and Closed to
Through Traffic signs by 3:00 p.m. Monday, November 10.  Downtown Merchants
Association will put barricades and signs in place at 3:00 p.m. on Monday afternoon.

6. Provide one (1) LPD Officer to assist with towing of any vehicles parked along West
“D” Street at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 11.

Item 2-5



7. Provide ten wide push brooms, five flat head shovels, and five wheel barrels.  The 
Downtown Merchants Association will make arrangements to have these items 
picked up Monday, November 10. 

8. Provide three (3) LPD Officers along Follett Street (staging area / Follett between “D” 
Street and the RR tracks) at 4:00 p.m. Tuesday, November 11, to help keep people 
who are not in the parade out of the staging area. 

9. Provide street sweeper services on Wednesday, November 12. 

10. Request that the City remove barriers after the street sweeper has completed 
cleaning the streets. 

 
Please assist us, and the community of Lemoore, in providing this opportunity to thank our 
men and women in uniform, past and present.  As always, we appreciate your cooperation 
in helping to make our community events successful.  If you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact me at (559) 907-8958.  Those wishing to register for the event may do 
so at Lemoore Recreation, 721 W. Cinnamon Drive (559) 924-6767. 
   
Thank you again, 

 

 

 
Paul Jones 
Downtown Merchants Chairman 
 
CC: Jeff Laws 

John Gibson 
Russell Giron  
Ray Greenlee 
Joe Simonson 
David Wlaschin 
 



 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Maintenance & Fleet 

Divisions 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

Phone * (559) 924-6739 
FAX * (559) 924-6808 

Willard Rodarmel 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-6 
To: Lemoore City Council   

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: September 30, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: Budget Adjustment - Emergency Improvements at the Renovated 
Kings Lions Complex 

 

 
 

Discussion: 
 

As City Council is aware, the former 19th Avenue Park now Kings Lions Complex and 
Highway 198 Interchange have incurred major changes in the past year.  The creation 
of a new Kings Lions Complex (19th Avenue Park) has led to new challenges and 
experiences in providing a viable park space for the Community to use.  During the 
Kings Lions Complex renovation project, a pump production failure required emergency 
measures which included consulting with experts who analyzed and identified a new 
larger and higher producing motor and variable speed drive was needed for irrigation 
head to head coverage. The current irrigation pump will be shelved for future use.   
Additional soil analysis (See Attached) deemed it necessary to include a liquid fertilizer 
system to counteract sodium and high PH content in the soil. This system will allow a 
better play surface and provide 25 – 30% less water usage.  Current impact cost 
already incurred is $9,800. 
 
We would like to purchase a liquid fertilizer system which would include a tank, liquid 
fertilizer and hookups for an overall total cost $8,700.  Initial reoccurring annual costs 
would be $2,250 per year to counteract the problems.  We may see fewer applications 
in the future once the park is established which could result in lower annual costs. 
  
Budget Impact: 
 

A transfer of $18,500 from the Park Improvement Fund (074B) to the General Fund.  
The Park Improvement Fund has an estimated balance of $394,337. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, approve a budget adjustment which includes a transfer 
of $18,500 from the Capital Improvement Fund (074B) to the General Fund and 
authorize the increase of said amount to the Maintenance – Machinery and Equipment 
Budget (4220-4825) to meet emergency expenses and purchase and install a liquid 
fertilizer system.   
 





















 “In God We Trust” 1 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 3-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: September 30, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: 
Continuation of First Reading – General Plan Amendment (Resolution 
2014-29) and Zone Change (Ordinance 2014-05) for B&L Moving and 
Storage 

 
Discussion: 
 
B&L Moving and Storage (Jeffrey Kemper) is requesting a change of land use 
designation from Medium Density Residential to Light Industrial, and to change the 
zoning from RMD (Medium Density Residential) to ML (Light Industrial) for the site 
located at 847 and 849 Champion Street, on the northwest corner of Iona Avenue and 
Champion Street in Lemoore.  The site proposed for amendment includes APNs 023-
150-017, 023-150-018, and 023-150-019. 
 
Planning Commission met on August 25, 2014 and recommended approval of General 
Plan Amendment No. 2014-01 and Zone Change 2014-01.  A public hearing is required 
to take testimony regarding the General Plan Amendment and the Zone Change. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing to take testimony 
regarding the General Plan Amendment and Change of Zone. Following the public 
hearing, staff recommends that the City Council consider the testimony given as well as 
the recommendation of the City Planning Commission, approve the General Plan 
Amendment Resolution 2014-29, waive the first reading of Ordinance 2014-05 for the 
Zone Change and pass to a second reading. 
 
 
 



 “In God We Trust” 2 

Proposal submitted to the Planning Commission: 
 
The applicant, B&L Moving and Storage (Jeffrey Kemper) requests a General Plan 
Amendment and Zone Change on his property.  The applicant is proposing to change 
the existing zone district from Medium Density Residential to Light Industrial.  This will 
allow him to continue to operate the existing moving and storage facility.  
 
The existing structures on the property were built for operating a moving/storage facility 
and have been there for many years.  Mr. Kemper feels that a moving and storage 
facility would be successful because of the influx of people that are drawn to the area by 
the Lemoore Naval Air Station and the housing in the area. 
 
The applicant fears that if not permitted to use the facility as a moving/storage business, 
the property would be left vacant and become more of a hindrance to the area.  There 
are no future plans to use the property for residential purposes.   
 
If amended, changes to the property will not be required and will allow the current 
tenants to continue to operate a moving and storage facility.  Nearby storage facilities 
have proven to be successful and have been in business for the last 30 years.  The 
modification of the zoning ordinance will alleviate any discrepancy for the proposed 
property to continue at its current capacity. 
 
Applicant   Jeffrey Kemper 

Location   847 & 849 Champion St. 

Existing Land Use  Moving and storage facility 

APN APNs 023-150-017, 023-150-018, and 023-150-019 

Site Size   1.48 Acres  

Zoning   Existing: RMD (Medium Density Residential)  

Proposed: ML (Light Industrial)  

General Plan  Existing: Medium Density Residential 

Proposed: Light Industrial 

Adjacent Land Use, Zone and General Plan Designation 

Direction Current Use  Zone General Plan 
    

North  
Moving/storage buildings, 
rural residences 

RLD (Low Density 
Residential) 

Low Density 
Residential 



 “In God We Trust” 3 

    

South  
Golf course, single-family 
residences, storage 
facility 

PR (Parks/ Recreation),    
ML (Light Industrial) 

Parks and 
Recreation, 
Industrial 

    

East Golf course  PR (Parks/ Recreation) 
Parks and 
Recreation 

    

West 
Vacant land and rural 
residence 

RMD (Medium Density 
Residential) 

Medium Density 
Residential 

 
Zoning/General Plan 
 
The current General Plan designation and Zoning is Medium Density Residential.  
Moving and storage facilities are not allowed in this zone.  Therefore, the business is 
currently in violation of the Zoning Ordinance.  A letter to this effect was sent to the Mr. 
Kemper on April 17, 2014.  He has submitted the requested amendments in an effort to 
bring the business back into compliance. 
 
History 
 
The property was inherited by Jeffrey Kemper.  It was given to him and his brother 
Matthew Kemper, following the passing of their mother.  It was previously owned and 
operated by his grandfather as a moving and storage facility for 30 years. 
The site had been previously planned and zoned for light industrial uses.  The 
comprehensive General Plan Update changed the site to Medium Density Residential, 
making the business out of conformance with the General Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
On August 25, 2014, the Planning Commission reviewed the staff’s recommendation, 
heard testimony from the applicant and voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the general 
plan amendment and zone change.   
 
Proposal Evaluation 
 
The proposal will allow the existing moving and storage facility to keep operating as it is 
currently.  If the request is denied, then the business will be out of compliance with the 
zoning ordinance and will be required to close.  Since the buildings cannot likely be 
converted to residential uses, the buildings would likely have to be demolished and new 
residential buildings built in order for the site to be productive again. 
 
Staff sees this situation as an unintended consequence of the comprehensive General 
Plan Update.  The proposed amendments would restore the site to an allowed Industrial 
use status, allowing the business to continue to operate. 
 



 “In God We Trust” 4 

There are other industrial uses nearby that are compatible with the existing use.  The 
facility is also compatible with the golf course.  Therefore, changing the site back to 
Light Industrial would not result in any incompatible, adjacent land uses. 
 
Environmental Assessment 
 
Pursuant to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act), Initial Study was prepared to 
determine if there were any potentially significant effects to the environment from the 
project.  The Initial Study determined that no potentially significant effects would result 
from the project. 
 
Recommended Approval Findings 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission make the following findings and recommend 
approval of the project to the City Council: 
 

1. The general plan amendment is in the public interest and the General Plan, as 
amended, will remain internally consistent. 

 
2. The zone change is consistent with the general plan goals, policies, and 

implementation programs. 
 
Recommended Approval Conditions 
 
There are no recommended conditions.  Approvals of General Plan Amendments and 
Zone Changes typically do not include conditions. 
 
Subsequent Actions 
 
If approved by the City Council, a General Plan Amendment will be granted.  The 
Change of Zone will be brought back to Council for a second reading at a future 
meeting.  
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 



“In God We Trust” 

RESOLUTION #2014-29 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 2014-01  

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on October 7, 2014, 
at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member_____________, seconded by Council 
Member_____________ and carried that the following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, B&L Moving and Storage., represented by Jeffrey Kemper, has requested a general 
plan amendment and zone change to: 1) change the land use designation in the General Plan from 
Medium Density Residential to Light Industrial, and 2) change the zoning from RMD (Medium Density 
Residential) to ML (Light Industrial), on property at 847 and 849 Champion Street in Lemoore (APNs  
023-150-017, 023-150-018, and 023-150-019); and 
 

WHEREAS, the site currently contains a moving and storage facility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the land use designation and zoning on the parcel at one time was ML (Light 
Industrial) and then was changed to Medium Density Residential with the comprehensive General Plan 
Update; and 

 
WHEREAS, the project proposes no changes to the operation of the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Initial Study was prepared in accordance with the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA), and found no potentially significant effects that might result from the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission recommended approval after a duly noticed 
public hearing at their August 25, 2014, meeting. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore finds that no 
significant environmental impacts would result from the identified project, and certifies that the Negative 
Declaration was prepared consistent with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA.) 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore approves General 

Plan Amendment 2014-02 and Zone Change 2014-02, based on the evidence presented and the 
following specific findings: 

 
1.  The general plan amendment is in the public interest and the General Plan, as amended, will 

remain internally consistent. 

2. The zone change is consistent with the general plan goals, policies, and implementation programs. 

3. Without the change to the General Plan and zoning, the existing business would be not allowed to 
continue operating, as it would be in violation of the City Zoning Ordinance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on the 7th 
day of October 2014 by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 ABSENT: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
            
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 



“In God We Trust” 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE ZONING ORDINANCE 

(ZONE CHANGE #2014-01) 
 

WHEREAS, B&L Storage, represented by Jeffrey Kemper, has submitted applications to: 1) 
change the land use designation from Medium Density Residential to Light Industrial; and 2) change the 
zoning map from Medium Density Residential (RMD) to Light Industrial (ML); and 

 
WHEREAS, an Initial Study was prepared in accordance with the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA), which disclosed that no significant environmental impacts would result from the 
project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore, after duly published notice, held a 

public hearing before said Commission on August 25, 2014, and then recommended approval of the 
General Plan Amendment and Zone Change; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, held a public hearing on October 7, 2014; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Zoning Map of the Lemoore Zoning Ordinance is hereby changed as follows:  

The portions of the zoning map north of the Iona Ave alignment that are designated Medium Density 
Residential (RMD) and identified as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs) 023-150-017, 023-150-018, and 
023-150-019 shall be changed to Light Industrial (ML).  

 
Section 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and cause it, or a 

summary of it, to be published once within 15 days of adoption in a newspaper of general circulation 
printed and published within the City of Lemoore, and shall post a certified copy of this Ordinance, 
including the vote for and against the same, in the Office of the City Clerk in accordance with Government 
Code Section 36933.  Any summary of this Ordinance must be approved by the City Attorney before its 
publication.  The City Clerk is further directed to cause this Ordinance to be codified after its adoption. 

 
Section 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
 The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 7th day of October 2014 and was passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the 
City Council held on the ______ day of _________________ 2014 by the following vote:

  
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 







 “In God We Trust” 1 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 3-2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: September 30, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: 
First Reading – Zone Text Amendment to Modify Performance 
Standards for Home Occupation Permits – Ordinance 2014-06 

 
Discussion: 
 
City Council requested that staff bring back ordinance changes that would allow the City 
Council the ability to approve modifications to the performance standards of a Home 
Occupation Permit when special circumstances exist.  Planning Commission met on 
September 22, 2014 and recommended approval of Zoning Text Amendment No. 2014-
02.  A public hearing is required to take testimony regarding the Zone Text Amendment. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing to take testimony 
regarding the Zone Text Amendment.  Following the public hearing, staff recommends 
that the City Council consider the testimony given as well as the recommendation of the 
City Planning Commission, waive the first reading of Ordinance 2014-06 for the Zone 
Text Amendment and pass to a second reading. 
 
 
Proposal submitted to Planning Commission:  
 
At the August 14, 2014 meeting, City Council denied a Home Occupation Permit for not 
meeting the performance standards listed in The Zoning Ordinance.  The Council 
requested that Staff bring back ordinance changes that would allow the City Council the 
ability to approve modifications to the performance standards of a Home Occupation 
Permit when special circumstances exist.  As proposed, the council could only modify 
the performance standards if a denial was appealed to them. 



 “In God We Trust” 2 

 
The proposal also includes two minor technical changes to clean up language in the 
Home Occupation section of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
History 
 
Claudia Peinado and Antonio Carilto submitted an application June 12, 2014 to obtain a 
Home Occupation Permit to park their commercial vehicles on their property; the 
vehicles are currently used for their tree trimming business. 
 
After review of the application August 14, 2014, city staff denied the Home Occupation 
Permit, because applicants are in violation of the current Zoning Ordinance by parking a 
vehicle larger than three-quarter ton on their property, which is currently zoned as Low 
Density Residential, thus in violation of City Zoning Ordinance.  The applicants 
appealed the decision to City Council, arguing that their site is much larger than a 
traditional single-family lot, and that there is an existing garage large enough to park the 
vehicles.  The Council wanted to approve The Home Occupation Permit, but there were 
no provisions in the ordinance to consider special circumstances. 
 
Proposed Text Changes 
 
The following are sections from the Zoning Ordinance being proposed for modification, 
followed by the staff’s reasoning for recommending the modification.  All of the sections 
are from 9-2B-9 and 9-4D-5 of the Zoning Ordinance. Text to be removed is shown in 
strikeout, while text to be added is shown as underlined. 
 
Subsequent Actions 
 
If approved after the public hearing, the Zoning Text Amendment will be brought back to 
the City Council for a second reading of the ordinance modifications.  The changes, if 
approved, will be effective 30 days after the final approval. 
 
 
 
 
 



 “In God We Trust”   3

City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance, Title 9; 9-4D-5: Home Occupations and 9-2B-9: Home 
Occupation Permit 

 

Underlined text is proposed to be added.  Strikeout text is proposed to be deleted. 

9-4D-5: HOME OCCUPATIONS: 

A. Purpose and Applicability: The regulations contained in this section shall apply to home 
occupations to ensure the compatibility of the home occupations with the principal 
residential uses in order to protect the integrity and character of neighborhoods. 

B. Approval Process: Prior to the establishment of a home occupation, the proprietor of a home 
occupation shall first obtain a home occupation permit and a business license from the city. 
The procedures for submittal, review, and approval of the home occupation permit shall be 
as described in chapter 2, article B, "Planning Permits and Entitlements", of this title. No 
business license shall be issued until a home occupation permit is first issued. Business 
licenses shall be reviewed and issued consistent with the provisions of title 3, "Business, 
License and Permit Regulations", of the municipal code. 

C. Categories of Home Occupations: As described in chapter 2, article B, "Planning Permits and 
Entitlements", of this title, there are two (2) types of home occupations permits - major and 
minor. Major permits are discretionary in nature and are reserved for those activities that 
may generate vehicular and pedestrian traffic and that may adversely impact residential 
neighborhoods. Minor permits are ministerial and are for those activities that have little or no 
impact on the neighborhood. Examples of each kind of activity are described below. The 
planning director shall have the authority to determine if a proposed activity is a major or 
minor activity, or is an activity prohibited as a home occupation. 

1. Minor Home Occupation: Minor home occupations are home occupations that do not 
generate higher levels of traffic than that customarily found in a residential 
neighborhood, do not have customers visiting the home, and which do not have a 
noticeable appearance. Examples include, but are not limited to, the following types of 
occupations: 

a. Art and craft work such as ceramics, flower arranging, jewelry making, painting, 
sculpting, and photography; 

b. Electronic and other by mail commerce involving the storage and shipping of goods 
and products from the home; and 

c. Office uses such as an office for a tax preparer, contractor, architect, attorney, 
consultant, counselor, engineer, insurance agent, planner, tutor, data and/or word 
processing, and real estate agent where no customers come to the home. 

d. Cottage food operations that are established per California Government Code Section 
51035. 

2. Major Home Occupation: Major home occupations are more intensive operations that may 
have a noticeable impact on surrounding residential land uses as a result of increased 
traffic (vehicular and pedestrian), that may have up to five (5) customers come to the 
home per day, and that send or receive goods beyond those customary for a residential 
neighborhood. Examples include, but are not limited to, the following types of 
occupations: 



 “In God We Trust”   4

a. Furniture stripping and refurbishing; 

b. Mobile clinics; and 

c. Office uses such as an office for a contractor, architect, attorney, consultant, 
counselor, engineer, insurance agent, planner, tutor, data and/or word processing, 
and real estate agent where fewer than five (5) customers come to the home per 
day. 

D. Activities Prohibited As Home Occupations: The following activities are specifically prohibited 
as home occupations: 

1. Ambulance service; 

2. Ammunition reloading, including custom reloading; 

3. Boarding house, bed and breakfast, hotel, timeshare condominium; 

4. Carpentry, cabinetmakers; 

5. Ceramics (kiln of 6 cubic feet or more); 

6. Firearms repair or sales; 

7. Health salons, gyms, dance studios, aerobic exercise studios; 

8. Massage therapy; 

9. Medical, dental, chiropractic, or veterinary clinics (including boarding); 

10. Mortician, hearse service; 

11. Palm reading and fortune telling; 

12. Private clubs; 

13. Repair or reconditioning of boats or recreation vehicles; 

14. Restaurants or taverns; 

15. Retail sales from site (except direct distribution of artist's originals, food prepared at a 
cottage food operation, and electronic and mail order commerce); 

16. Storage, repair, or reconditioning of major household appliances; 

17. Storage, repair, or reconditioning of motorized vehicles or large equipment on site other 
than personal use; 

18. Tattoo service; 

19. Tow truck service; and 

20. Welding service. 

E. Performance Standards: The following standards shall apply to all minor home occupation 
permit applications. The standards may be modified by the approving authority for major 
home occupations.  



 “In God We Trust”   5

1. Number of Home Occupations: There is no limit on the number of home occupations at a 
residence provided that the performance standards identified in this section are met. 

2. Employees: Offsite employees or partners are not permitted. Only occupants of the home 
may work on site. 

3. Habitable Floor Area: The use of the dwelling for the home occupation shall be clearly 
incidental and subordinate to its use for residential purposes. Not more than one 
hundred fifty (150) square feet or fifteen percent (15%) of the floor area of the dwelling, 
whichever is less, shall be used in the home occupation. 

4. Offsite Effects: There shall be no mechanical equipment or operation used which creates 
or makes dust, odor, vibration, or other effects detectable at the property line. No 
process shall be used which is hazardous to public health, safety, morals, or welfare. 

5. Sales: 

a. Onsite Sales: There shall be no products sold on the premises except artist's originals 
or products individually made to order on the premises. 

b. Offsite Sales: Offsite sales, including electronic and mail order commerce, shall be 
permitted. 

6. Display: There shall be no display of products produced by occupants of the dwelling 
which are visible in any manner from the outside of the dwelling unit. 

7. Traffic: The use shall not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic beyond that which is 
normal in a residential district nor in any case require the parking of more than two (2) 
additional vehicles at any one time. 

8. Vehicles: One truck or van, not more than three-quarters (3/4) ton capacity, may be kept 
on or adjacent to the premises associated with the home occupation. No campers or 
semitrailers incidental to the home occupation shall be kept on the premises. 

9. Storage: There shall be no storage of material or supplies out of doors. 

10. Exterior Appearance: There shall be no remodeling or construction of facilities especially 
for the home occupation which changes the external appearance of the neighborhood 
from a residential to a more commercial look when viewed from the front of the building. 

11. Signs: Signs shall be allowed for the home occupation in accordance with chapter 5, 
article F, "Signage", of this title. 

12. Visitors and Customers: For minor home occupation permits, no visitors or customers 
shall be allowed.  For major home occupation permits, Visitors and customers shall not 
exceed those normally and reasonably occurring for a residence, including not more 
than eight (8)  five (5) a day, during the hours of eight in the morning (8:00 A.M.) to 
seven in the evening (7:00 P.M.). 

13. Deliveries: Deliveries shall not exceed those normally and reasonably occurring for a 
residence. Deliveries of materials for the home occupation shall not involve the use of 
commercial vehicles except for FedEx, UPS, or USPS type home pickups and deliveries. 

14. Hazardous Materials: Storage of hazardous materials is limited to below those 
thresholds as established by the fire department to not require any special permits or 
licenses.  



 “In God We Trust”   6

15. Notwithstanding the foregoing standards, a cottage food operation may have one (1) 
employee who does not live at the site, and may sell goods at the site.  

F. Failure to comply with these standards may result in revocation of the home occupation 
permit and/or business license. (Ord. 2013-05, 02/06/2014) 

9-2B-9: HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT: 

A. Purpose: The purpose of the home occupation permit is to provide a process for the review 
and permitting of home occupations prior to their establishment. 

B. Applicability: All home occupations as described in chapter 4, "Use Regulations", of this title 
shall obtain a home occupation permit prior to the issuance of a business license and the 
establishment of the home occupation. There are two (2) types of home occupation permits 
as follows: 

1. Minor Home Occupation Permit: A minor home occupation permit is a ministerial approval 
that is conducted to ensure home occupations are conducted consistent with the 
development standards of section 9-4D-5, "Home Occupations", of this title. 

2. Major Home Occupation Permit: A major home occupation permit is intended for the   
review and discretionary approval of those home occupations that may generate more 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic than a typical residential use and thereby have the 
potential to adversely impact the surrounding residential neighborhood. 

C. Approval Authority: The designated approving authority for minor home occupation permits 
shall be the planning director.  The designated approving authority for major home 
occupation permits shall be the Planning Commission.   

D. Public Notification: The public notification of an application for a home occupation permit 
shall be made as follows: 

1. Minor Home Occupation Permit: Minor home occupation permits are ministerial in nature. 
No public notification shall be required. 

2. Major Home Occupation Permit: Public hearing and notice are required for a major home 
occupation permit pursuant to section 9-2A-6, "Public Notice, Hearings, and Decisions", 
of this chapter. 

E. Approval Findings: A home occupation permit shall be granted only when the designated 
approving authority determines that the proposed home occupation complies with all of the 
following findings: 

1. The proposed home occupation is consistent with the general plan, any applicable 
specific plan, and all applicable provisions of this title (e.g., section 9-4D-5 of this title); 
and 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the home occupation applied for will not, 
under the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general 
welfare of the city. 



 “In God We Trust”   7

F. Post approval Implementation: Requirements for implementation of an approved home 
occupation permit shall be provided as follows: 

1. Minor Home Occupation Permit: A minor home occupation permit is ministerial in nature. 
As such, the planning director may not impose conditions on the issuance of the permit. 
However, the applicant may be provided with a list of items necessary for compliance 
and conformance with this title and the general plan. 

2. Major Home Occupation Permit: The designated approving authority may impose 
conditions and/or require guarantees in order to ensure compliance with this title and to 
prevent adverse or detrimental impact to the surrounding neighborhood. (Ord. 2013-05, 
02/06/2014) 

 G. Appeals: The decision of the minor or major Home Occupation Permit may be appealed to 
the City Council. A Public hearing and notice is required for an appeal pursuant to section 9-
2A-6, "Public Notice, Hearings, and Decisions", of this chapter.  If the permit was denied for 
not meeting the performance standards in Section 9-4D-5E, the City Council may approve 
the permit with alternative performance standards if the following findings are made: 

1. There are special circumstances applicable to the property (e.g., location, shape, size 
surroundings, topography, or other conditions), so that the strict application of the 
required performance standards for this Home Occupation permit is not necessary to 
preserve the residential nature of the neighborhood; 

2. Alternative performance standards that protect and preserve the residential nature of the 
neighborhood have been included as conditions of approval; 

3. Granting the Home Occupation will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the 
interest of residents and property owners in the vicinity of the premise in question; and 

4. The Home Occupation Permit is consistent with the general plan, any applicable specific 
plan or development agreement, and the intent of this title. 

 



 “In God We Trust”   1

  
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 2014-02 

TO MODIFY HOME OCCUPATION STANDARDS IN THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council initiated changes to the City of Lemoore’s Zoning 
Ordinance text pertaining to Home Occupations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed changes at a public 

hearing on September 22, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after duly published notice, held a public hearing on 

October 7, 2014; 
WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from CEQA requirements per the minor 

alterations to land use limitations exemption in Section 15305 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
hereby makes the following findings regarding the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
(Title 9-4D-5 Home Occupations and 9-2B-9 Home Occupation Permit): 

 
Section 1. The zoning ordinance text amendment is consistent with the general plan goals, 
policies, and implementation programs. The modifications will continue to protect the integrity 
and character of neighborhoods. 
 
Section 2. The zoning ordinance text amendment will allow more flexibility to approve Home 
Occupations when there are special circumstances applicable to a project site.    
 
Section 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.  

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 7th day of October 2014 and was passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting of the City Council held on the ______ day of _________________ 2014 by the 
following vote:

  
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAINING: 

ABSENT: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 



 “In God We Trust”   2

 
Attachment A 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06 
 

Section 9-2B-9C is hereby amended to read: 

C. Approval Authority: The designated approving authority for minor home occupation permits 
shall be the planning director.  The designated approving authority for major home 
occupation permits shall be the Planning Commission. 

Section 9-2B-9G is hereby added: 

G. Appeals: The decision of the minor or major Home Occupation Permit may be appealed to 
the City Council. A Public hearing and notice is required for an appeal pursuant to section 9-
2A-6, "Public Notice, Hearings, and Decisions", of this chapter.  If the permit was denied for 
not meeting the performance standards in Section 9-4D-5E, the City Council may approve 
the permit with alternative performance standards if the following findings are made: 

1. There are special circumstances applicable to the property (e.g., location, shape, size 
surroundings, topography, or other conditions), so that the strict application of the 
required performance standards for this Home Occupation permit is not necessary to 
preserve the residential nature of the neighborhood; 

2. Alternative performance standards that protect and preserve the residential nature of the 
neighborhood have been included as conditions of approval; 

3. Granting the Home Occupation will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the 
interest of residents and property owners in the vicinity of the premise in question; and 

4. The Home Occupation Permit is consistent with the general plan, any applicable specific 
plan or development agreement, and the intent of this title. 

Section 9-4D-5E-12 is hereby amended to read: 

12. Visitors and Customers: For minor home occupation permits, no visitors or customers 
shall be allowed.  For major home occupation permits, Visitors and customers shall not 
exceed those normally and reasonably occurring for a residence, including not more 
than eight (8)  five (5) a day, during the hours of eight in the morning (8:00 A.M.) to 
seven in the evening (7:00 P.M.) 





“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Police 
Department 

 
657 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-9574 

Fax (559) 924-3116 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 3-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Darrell Smith, Chief of Police  

Date: September 22, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: Animal Control Ordinance Proposed Changes 

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Lemoore Municipal Code chapters dealing with Animal Control Ordinances have not 
been updated since August of 2002.  While reviewing the chapters under this section, I have 
made some proposed changes in order to update and enhance our abilities to carry out Animal 
Control functions more responsibly and efficiently throughout our City. 
 
Below are some of the highlights for proposed changes to the Ordinance; 
 

 5-1-3: Definitions:  Addition of the term "Public Nuisance" as it applies specifically to the 
Animal Control sections. 

 5-1-77: Vicious or Chasing Dog or Other Animal Deemed Nuisance:  Addition of clear 
language as to the application and enforcement of a Public Nuisance for specific acts 
under this section. 

 5-1-80: Public Nuisance:  New section for Enforcement/Abatement process. 
 5-1-29: Mandatory Spay/Neuter, Microchip Requirement fro sheltered animals. New 

section. 
 5-1-30: Breeder Permit. New section. 
 5-1-31: Breeder Permit Requirements. New section. 

 
The proposed changes are italicized: 
 
5-1-3: DEFINITIONS:  
 
As used in this chapter, all words shall have their usual meanings except that the following 
words or terms as used in this chapter shall be defined as follows: 
 
AGENT: Any agency, society or other organization with which the city has contracted to carry 
out the provisions of this chapter. 
 
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER: The chief of police or his/her designee or any person employed 
by the city or under the supervision of the animal control officer or the police department for the 
purpose of enforcing the animal control laws and regulations. When the city has contracted for 
the performance of such services, animal control officer shall mean the party with whom the city 
has so contracted. 
 
ANIMAL LICENSE FEE COLLECTOR: The animal control officer or any person or entity 



“In God We Trust” 

delegated by and under the supervision of the animal control officer for the purpose of issuing 
animal licenses for the city of Lemoore. 
 
CITY: The city of Lemoore. 
 
COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER: The Kings County health officer, or his designee. 
 
DANGEROUS ANIMAL: Any animal that has bitten, injured or aggressively pursued any human 
being or other animal which the animal control officer, after conducting an investigation pursuant 
to section 5-1-56 of this chapter or a hearing officer, after an appeal hearing, finds that because 
of its behavior, temperament and physical characteristics combined with the manner in which it 
is maintained will probably cause great bodily harm to a human being or other animal in the 
future. No animal shall be found to be a dangerous animal based only on circumstances set 
forth in section 5-1-56 of this chapter. 
 
DISEASED OR INJURED ANIMAL: Any animal not suspected of rabies which is apparently 
either diseased, sick, injured, disabled, infirm or crippled. 
 
DOG KENNEL: Any place or premises where four (4) or more dogs or cats or combinations 
thereof, over the age of four (4) months, are kept. For the purposes of this chapter, "keeping" 
includes boarding, grooming, breeding, training, sale and related purposes other than places 
maintained by a licensed veterinarian or society for the prevention of cruelty to animals. 
 
FOWL: As used herein includes chickens, turkeys, emus, ostriches, and all other domestic or 
domesticated fowl other than household pets. 
 
GUIDE DOG: Any dog trained to lead a blind person. 
 
HARBORING: A person "harbors" a dog within the meaning of this chapter when he feeds or 
shelters a dog. 
 
LIVESTOCK: As used herein includes horses, ponies, mules, burros, jack or jennies, cows, 
bulls, calves, heifers, sheep, goats, swine, hogs, pigs, and all other domestic or domesticated 
animals other than household pets. 
 
OWNER: Any person, association, firm or corporation owning, having an interest in, or having 
control, custody, or possession of any animal. 
 
POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS ANIMAL: Any animal that has bitten, injured or aggressively 
pursued any human being or other animal which the animal control officer, after conducting an 
investigation pursuant to section 5-1-56 of this chapter or a hearing officer, after an appeal 
hearing finds that because of its behavior, temperament and physical characteristics combined 
with the manner in which it is maintained there is a substantial possibility that it will cause injury 
or great bodily harm to a human being or other animal in the future. No animal shall be found to 
be a potentially dangerous animal based solely on circumstances set forth in section 5-1-56 of 
this chapter. 
 
RUNNING AT LARGE: A dog "runs at large" within the meaning of this chapter when it is on 
private property without the permission of the person owning or occupying the property, or when 
it is upon public property and is not upon a leash or chain continuously held in the hand of a 
responsible person capable of controlling such dog. 
 
SIGNAL DOG: Any dog trained to lead or assist a deaf person. (Ord. 2007-03, 5-15-2007) 
 



“In God We Trust” 

PUBLIC NUISCANCE:  means, for the purposes of this section:  

 A. Any animal or animals which: 

       1.     Harass or annoy passersby or chases passing vehicles; 

       2.     Attacks other animals; 

       3.     Trespasses on school grounds; 

       4.     Is at large three (3) or more times within a 12 month period; 

       5.     Damages private or public property; 

       6.     Barks, whines, or howls in an excessive or untimely fashion as described in 
Chapter 5-1-79. 

 B. An owner allowing his/her animal to:  (i) defecate on property not owned by the 
animal owner without immediately cleaning or removing the excrement to a proper receptacle or 
(ii) urinate on property not owned by an animal owner that causes damage to such property, 
including without limitation, damage to grass. 

 C. Unsanitary conditions on any premises where the animal is kept which causes 
foul odor, attracts flies or vermin or otherwise threatens the public safety or health. 

D. Any other condition, act, omission or event not warranted by law or which 
endanger the life, health, property, morals, or comfort of the public, or obstructs the public in the 
exercise or enjoyment of rights common to all or as otherwise defined as a nuisance in this 
section, Code or by law. 

5-1-77: VICIOUS OR CHASING DOG OR OTHER ANIMAL DEEMED NUISANCE:  
 
The keeping or harboring of any animal which is by reason of vicious disposition a menace to 
persons or other animals, or which is a continual hazard or annoyance to persons or vehicles 
passing by the premises where it is kept, shall be an infraction and such animal shall be 
deemed a public nuisance. Any person may file a complaint with the animal control officer in 
writing, signed by, and bearing the address of the person complaining. The complaint shall state 
the place where such nuisance exists, describe such animal and its conduct and give the name 
and address of its owner or keeper, if known. The animal control officer upon complaint or his 
own knowledge shall investigate, and if a violation exists, may cause notice of abatement to be 
issued, make an arrest in accordance with section 5-1-8 of this chapter, or take such other 
action as is necessary. (Ord. 2002-11, 8-6-2002) 

Any animal (except cats) permitted to be at large or trespassing upon private premises or public 
property in violation of this section shall be deemed prima facie to be under the control of the 
owner and declared to be a public nuisance and menace to public health and safety, and shall 
be seized and impounded as provided in this title. 

Owners shall exercise proper care and control of their animals (except cats) and will prevent 
them from becoming a public nuisance, harassing or annoying passersby, chasing vehicles, 
attacking other domestic animals, and trespassing upon private property in such manner as to 
damage property.  Failure to comply shall be deemed a public nuisance. 



“In God We Trust” 

A public nuisance will exist as a result of the keeping or maintaining, or permitting to be kept or 
maintained, upon any premises owned, occupied, or controlled by any person of any animal or 
animals, which by any frequent or long continued noise shall cause annoyance or discomfort to 
two (2) or more reasonable persons of normal sensitiveness who reside in separate residences 
(including apartments and condominiums). However, an animal control officer may proceed on 
the basis of a complaint of only one person, if circumstances are determined to exist whereby a 
noise disturbance caused by an animal affects only one individual. Any noise caused by an 
animal which is audible continuously for ten (10) minutes, or intermittently for thirty (30) minutes, 
shall be prima facie evidence of such annoyance or discomfort. Factors which can be used to 
evaluate excessive animal noise include, but are not limited to: (a) pitch; (b) pattern; (c) 
frequency of occurrence; and (d) loudness. 

5-1-80: PUBLIC NUISCANCE 

    A.     Wherever any animal control officer or peace officer finds a public nuisance to exist 
within the meaning of this chapter, they shall notify the owner of the animal by registered mail or 
in person that the owner shall either abate said nuisance within ten (10) days or show cause 
why said nuisance should not be summarily abated. 

     B.     If said nuisance is not abated and no show of cause is made, the animal control officer 
may then issue a citation to the owner of the animal or may impound the animal which is 
creating the nuisance. Any animal so impounded shall be taken to the Animal Shelter 
designated by the city. 

5-1-29 MICROCHIP IDENTIFICATION AND SPAY/ NEUTER COMPLIANCE FOR SHELTER 
ANIMALS. 

 
   A. Animal services shall implant each dog and cat impounded at the Animal Shelter, not 
previously microchipped, with a microchip identification device. The owner of such dog or cat 
shall be obligated to pay for the cost associated with the implantation of the microchip 
identification device as part of the impound fee. It shall be the owner’s responsibility to have 
correct and current information registered with the city or the city’s designee at all times. 

  B  Except as otherwise provided herein, any dog or cat sold, given away or released by the 
Animal Shelter or city designee shall be spayed or neutered in accordance with Food & 
Agricultural Code Section 30503, as may be amended.  Male and female animals shall be at 
least 2 months of age and have a weight of at least 2 pounds. An extension of time to perform 
surgery may be granted by the Animal Shelter if a veterinarian provides a medical determination 
that the surgery cannot be performed as scheduled and must be postponed. The facility 
performing the surgery may spay or neuter an animal weighing less than two (2) pounds if by 
their determination it is safe to perform said surgery. The city, the Animal Shelter, or the city’s 
designee may release an un-spayed or unneutered animal if the party receiving the animal 
possesses or obtains a breeder’s permit  and pays the required fees, including, without 
limitation, the cost of boarding, licensing (in the case of a dog), State fees.    

5-1-30     BREEDER PERMIT AND ADVERTISING 

      A.     It is unlawful for any person to breed dogs and/or cats for sale or profit or to 
advertise for the sale or adoption of such animals without first obtaining a breeder permit. 

      B.     The fees for a breeder permit shall be set by resolution of the city council and must 
be submitted to the animal control officer for the breeding of dogs or cats, as well as advertising 
for the sale or adoption of dogs and cats that are bred within the city limits. Breeding permit 
requirements are as follows: 



“In God We Trust” 

      1.     No offspring can be sold or adopted until eight (8) weeks of age; 

      2.     No offspring can be sold or adopted until vaccinated against common diseases; 

      3.     The breeder permit holder must identify his/her/its permit number when advertising 
the animals for sale or adoption.  

      C.     It is unlawful for any person to advertise for the sale or adoption of a litter of dogs 
or cats in the city without including in the advertisement a city breeder permit number.  

 D. A breeder permit shall be in addition to other requirements and conditions that 
must be satisfied under this code in order to undertake animal breeding operations within the 
city (e.g., city business permit, special use permit, etc.). 

5-1-31   BREEDER PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

     A.     Application for all breeder permits pursuant to this chapter shall be filed with the, animal 
control officer or city designee on a form prescribed by the city. Fees charged for these permits 
shall be set by resolution of the city council as recommended by the Animal Control Officer or 
city designee. Permits shall be issued for the calendar year or any part thereof and are effective 
from January 1st of each year and expire on December 31st of that same year. If a permit is 
issued during a month other than January, the permit fee shall be prorated with respect to the 
month during which issuance occurs (e.g., the permit fee for a permit issued in February will be 
11/12ths of the full annual fee).  Renewal and payment of the permit is due and payable on 
January 1st of each year. The city designee shall collect a delinquent penalty in an amount 
equal to the amount as established for license penalties. 

     B.     The failure to obtain the appropriate permit is punishable as an infraction as set forth 
herein. 

C. Any or all of the permits within this code may be immediately suspended for any 
violations of the conditions of this title.  

Breeder permit fees shall be established by Council Resolution.  Staff recommends the fee for 
Breeders Permit to be set at $105.00 which is consistent with surrounding agencies. 

Budget Impact: 
 
There is no impact to the general fund. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Lemoore City Council by motion, waive the first reading of Ordinance 2014-07 which 
amends Municipal Code Sections; 5-1-3, 5-1-77, adds Sections; 5-1-80, 5-1-29, 5-1-30, and 5-
1-31, and pass to a second reading. 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING SECTIONS 3 AND 77 OF CHAPTER 1 OF TITLE 5 AND ADDIING 
SECTIONS 80, 29, 30 AND 31 OF CHAPTER 1 OF TITLE 5 OF THE LEMOORE 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO ANIMAL CONTROL 
 
The City Council of the City of Lemoore does ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Section 3 of Chapter 1 of Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code is amended and 
restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“5-1-3: DEFINITIONS:  
 
As used in this chapter, all words shall have their usual meanings except that the following 
words or terms as used in this chapter shall be defined as follows: 
 
AGENT: Any agency, society or other organization with which the city has contracted to carry 
out the provisions of this chapter. 
 
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER: The chief of police or his/her designee or any person 
employed by the city or under the supervision of the animal control officer or the police 
department for the purpose of enforcing the animal control laws and regulations. When the city 
has contracted for the performance of such services, animal control officer shall mean the party 
with whom the city has so contracted. 
 
ANIMAL LICENSE FEE COLLECTOR: The animal control officer or any person or entity 
delegated by and under the supervision of the animal control officer for the purpose of issuing 
animal licenses for the city of Lemoore. 
 
CITY: The city of Lemoore. 
 
COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER: The Kings County health officer, or his designee. 
 
DANGEROUS ANIMAL: Any animal that has bitten, injured or aggressively pursued any 
human being or other animal which the animal control officer, after conducting an investigation 
pursuant to section 5-1-56 of this chapter or a hearing officer, after an appeal hearing, finds that 
because of its behavior, temperament and physical characteristics combined with the manner in 
which it is maintained will probably cause great bodily harm to a human being or other animal in 
the future. No animal shall be found to be a dangerous animal based only on circumstances set 
forth in section 5-1-56 of this chapter. 
 
DISEASED OR INJURED ANIMAL: Any animal not suspected of rabies which is apparently 
either diseased, sick, injured, disabled, infirm or crippled. 
 
DOG KENNEL: Any place or premises where four (4) or more dogs or cats or combinations 
thereof, over the age of four (4) months, are kept. For the purposes of this chapter, "keeping" 
includes boarding, grooming, breeding, training, sale and related purposes other than places 
maintained by a licensed veterinarian or society for the prevention of cruelty to animals. 
FOWL: As used herein includes chickens, turkeys, emus, ostriches, and all other domestic or 
domesticated fowl other than household pets. 



 2

 
GUIDE DOG: Any dog trained to lead a blind person. 
 
HARBORING: A person "harbors" a dog within the meaning of this chapter when he feeds or 
shelters a dog. 
 
LIVESTOCK: As used herein includes horses, ponies, mules, burros, jack or Jennies, cows, 
bulls, calves, heifers, sheep, goats, swine, hogs, pigs, and all other domestic or domesticated 
animals other than household pets. 
 
OWNER: Any person, association, firm or corporation owning, having an interest in, or having 
control, custody, or possession of any animal. 
 
POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS ANIMAL: Any animal that has bitten, injured or aggressively 
pursued any human being or other animal which the animal control officer, after conducting an 
investigation pursuant to section 5-1-56 of this chapter or a hearing officer, after an appeal 
hearing finds that because of its behavior, temperament and physical characteristics combined 
with the manner in which it is maintained there is a substantial possibility that it will cause injury 
or great bodily harm to a human being or other animal in the future. No animal shall be found to 
be a potentially dangerous animal based solely on circumstances set forth in section 5-1-56 of 
this chapter. 

PUBLIC NUISCANCE:  means, for the purposes of this section:  

 A. Any animal or animals which: 

       1.    Harass or annoy passersby or chases passing vehicles; 

       2.    Attacks other animals; 

       3.    Trespasses on school grounds; 

       4.    Is at large three (3) or more times within a 12 month period; 

       5.    Damages private or public property; 

6.    Barks, whines, or howls in an excessive or untimely fashion as described in 
Chapter 5-1-79. 

B. An owner allowing his/her animal to:  (i) defecate on property not owned by the 
animal owner without immediately cleaning or removing the excrement to a 
proper receptacle or (ii) urinate on property not owned by an animal owner that 
causes damage to such property, including without limitation, damage to grass. 

C. Unsanitary conditions on any premises where the animal is kept which causes foul 
odor, attracts flies or vermin or otherwise threatens the public safety or health. 

D. Any other condition, act, omission or event not warranted by law or which 
endanger the life, health, property, morals, or comfort of the public, or obstructs 
the public in the exercise or enjoyment of rights common to all  or as otherwise 
defined as a nuisance in this section, Code or by law. 



 3

RUNNING AT LARGE: A dog "runs at large" within the meaning of this chapter when it is on 
private property without the permission of the person owning or occupying the property, or when 
it is upon public property and is not upon a leash or chain continuously held in the hand of a 
responsible person capable of controlling such dog. 
 
SIGNAL DOG: Any dog trained to lead or assist a deaf person. (Ord. 2007-03, 5-15-2007)” 
 
SECTION 2. Section 77 of Chapter 1 of Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code is amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“5-1-77: VICIOUS OR CHASING DOG OR OTHER ANIMAL DEEMED NUISANCE:  
 
The keeping or harboring of any animal which is by reason of vicious disposition a menace to 
persons or other animals, or which is a continual hazard or annoyance to persons or vehicles 
passing by the premises where it is kept, shall be an infraction and such animal shall be deemed a 
public nuisance. Any person may file a complaint with the animal control officer in writing, 
signed by, and bearing the address of the person complaining. The complaint shall state the place 
where such nuisance exists, describe such animal and its conduct and give the name and address 
of its owner or keeper, if known. The animal control officer upon complaint or his own 
knowledge shall investigate, and if a violation exists, may cause notice of abatement to be issued, 
make an arrest in accordance with section 5-1-8 of this chapter, or take such other action as is 
necessary. (Ord. 2002-11, 8-6-2002) 

Any animal (except cats) permitted to be at large or trespassing upon private premises or public 
property in violation of this section shall be deemed prima facie to be under the control of the 
owner and declared to be a public nuisance and menace to public health and safety, and shall be 
seized and impounded as provided in this title. 

Owners shall exercise proper care and control of their animals (except cats) and will prevent 
them from becoming a public nuisance, harassing or annoying passersby, chasing vehicles, 
attacking other domestic animals, and trespassing upon private property in such manner as to 
damage property.  Failure to comply shall be deemed a public nuisance.   

A public nuisance will exist as a result of the keeping or maintaining, or permitting to be kept or 
maintained, upon any premises owned, occupied, or controlled by any person of any animal or 
animals, which by any frequent or long continued noise shall cause annoyance or discomfort to 
two (2) or more reasonable persons of normal sensitiveness who reside in separate residences 
(including apartments and condominiums). However, an animal control officer may proceed on 
the basis of a complaint of only one person, if circumstances are determined to exist whereby a 
noise disturbance caused by an animal affects only one individual. Any noise caused by an 
animal which is audible continuously for ten (10) minutes, or intermittently for thirty (30) 
minutes, shall be prima facie evidence of such annoyance or discomfort. Factors which can be 
used to evaluate excessive animal noise include, but are not limited to: (a) pitch; (b) pattern; (c) 
frequency of occurrence; and (d) loudness.” 

SECTION 3. Chapter 1, Section 80 is hereby added Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
“5-1-80: PUBLIC NUISCANCE   

A. Wherever any animal control officer or peace officer finds a public nuisance to 
exist within the meaning of this chapter, they shall notify the owner of the animal 



 4

by registered mail or in person that the owner shall either abate said nuisance 
within ten (10) days or show cause why said nuisance should not be summarily 
abated. 

B. If said nuisance is not abated and no show of cause is made, the animal control 
officer may then issue a citation to the owner of the animal or may impound the 
animal which is creating the nuisance. Any animal so impounded shall be taken to 
the Animal Shelter designated by the city.” 

SECTION 4. Chapter 1, Section 29 is hereby added Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
 
“5-1-29: MICROCHIP IDENTIFICATION AND SPAY/ NEUTER COMPLIANCE FOR 
SHELTER ANIMALS. 
 

A. Animal services shall implant each dog and cat impounded at the Animal Shelter, 
not previously microchipped, with a microchip identification device. The owner 
of such dog or cat shall be obligated to pay for the cost associated with the 
implantation of the microchip identification device as part of the impound fee. It 
shall be the owner’s responsibility to have correct and current information 
registered with the city or the city’s designee at all times. 

B  Except as otherwise provided herein, any dog or cat sold, given away or released 
by the Animal Shelter or city designee shall be spayed or neutered in accordance 
with Food & Agricultural Code Section 30503, as may be amended.  Male and 
female animals shall be at least 2 months of age and have a weight of at least 2 
pounds. An extension of time to perform surgery may be granted by the Animal 
Shelter if a veterinarian provides a medical determination that the surgery cannot 
be performed as scheduled and must be postponed. The facility performing the 
surgery may spay or neuter an animal weighing less than two (2) pounds if by 
their determination it is safe to perform said surgery. The city, the Animal Shelter, 
or the city’s designee may release an un-spayed or unneutered animal if the party 
receiving the animal possesses or obtains a breeder’s permit  and pays the 
required fees, including, without limitation, the cost of boarding, licensing (in the 
case of a dog), State fees.”  

SECTION 5. Chapter 1, Section 30 is hereby added Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
 
“5-1-30     BREEDER PERMIT AND ADVERTISING 

A.     It is unlawful for any person to breed dogs and/or cats for sale or profit or to 
advertise for the sale or adoption of such animals without first obtaining a breeder 
permit. 

B. The fees for a breeder permit shall be set by resolution of the city council and 
must be submitted to the animal control officer for the breeding of dogs or cats, as 
well as advertising for the sale or adoption of dogs and cats that are bred within 
the city limits. Breeding permit requirements are as follows: 

1. No offspring can be sold or adopted until eight (8) weeks of age; 



 5

2. No offspring can be sold or adopted until vaccinated against common 
diseases; 

3. The breeder permit holder must identify his/her/its permit number when 
advertising the animals for sale or adoption.  

C. It is unlawful for any person to advertise for the sale or adoption of a litter of dogs 
or cats in the city without including in the advertisement a city breeder permit 
number.  

D. A breeder permit shall be in addition to other requirements and conditions that 
must be satisfied under this code in order to undertake animal breeding operations 
within the city (e.g., city business permit, special use permit, etc.).” 

SECTION 6. Chapter 1, Section 31 is hereby added Title 5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
 
“5-1-31   BREEDER PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

A. Application for all breeder permits pursuant to this chapter shall be filed with the, 
animal control officer or city designee on a form prescribed by the city. Fees 
charged for these permits shall be set by resolution of the city council as 
recommended by the Animal Control Officer or city designee. Permits shall be 
issued for the calendar year or any part thereof and are effective from January 1st 
of each year and expire on December 31st of that same year. If a permit is issued 
during a month other than January, the permit fee shall be prorated with respect to 
the month during which issuance occurs (e.g., the permit fee for a permit issued in 
February will be 11/12ths of the full annual fee).  Renewal and payment of the 
permit is due and payable on January 1st of each year. The city designee shall 
collect a delinquent penalty in an amount equal to the amount as established for 
license penalties. 

B. The failure to obtain the appropriate permit is punishable as an infraction as set 
forth herein. 

C. Any or all of the permits within this code may be immediately suspended for any 
violations of the conditions of this title.” 

SECTION 7. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its adoption. 
 
SECTION 8. The City Clerk is further directed to cause this Ordinance or a summary of this 
Ordinance to be published once in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated 
within the City of Lemoore, within fifteen (15) days after its adoption.  If a summary of the 
Ordinance is published, then the City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of the full text of the 
proposed Ordinance to be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the 
Council meeting at which the Ordinance is adopted and again after the meeting at which the 
Ordinance is adopted.  The summary shall be approved by the City Attorney. 

* * * * * 



 6

 The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Lemoore held on the 7th day of October 2014 and was passed and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held on the   day of     2014, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Willard Rodarmel 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff R. Laws, City Manager 

Date: October 2, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: Approval of Resolution 2014-30 Naming Jenell Van Bindsbergen as 
City Attorney for the City of Lemoore 

 

 
Discussion: 
Laurie Avedisian has served as the City Attorney for the City of Lemoore for almost two 
years.  She has decided to make a career change which will allow her more time with 
her growing family, and will be leaving Lozano Smith effective October 15, 2014 for an 
in-house position with the Fresno City Attorney’s Office.   
 
Ms. Avedisian and City staff have been working with Jenell Van Bindsbergen of Lozano 
Smith, who will be present at the City Council meeting, to ensure a smooth transition of 
legal services to the City of Lemoore. Ms. Van Bindsbergen has met with the City 
Manager and Mayor and has been briefed on all pending City issues.  Ms. Van 
Bindsbergen has been practicing law for 17 years and has been with Lozano Smith 
since 2006.  She has over 15 years of experience in municipal law, including extensive 
experience with personnel, litigation, ADA and public safety matters.    
 
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council, by motion, adopt Resolution 2014-30 naming Jenell Van Bindsbergen as 
City Attorney for the City of Lemoore. 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-30 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPOINTING A CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
October 7, 2014, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member_____________, 
seconded by Council Member_____________ and carried that the following Resolution be 
adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, the office of the City Attorney is filled by appointment of the City Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Lemoore as 
follows: 
 

1. That Jenell Van Bindsbergen of Lozano Smith (“Attorney”) is hereby appointed as 
Attorney for the City of Lemoore. 
 

2. Compensation for services to be rendered by the Attorney shall be pursuant to the 
existing contract between the City of Lemoore and Lozano Smith dated June 6, 2014. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 7th day of October 2014, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT: 

 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Willard Rodarmel 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: January 29, 2014 Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: Resolution 2014-31 Update on Senate Bill 7 Litigation and Request 
for Additional Funding 

 

 
Discussion: 
The League of California Cities has provided the attached update on Senate Bill 7.  City 
Attorney Jenell Van Bindsbergen will be in attendance to answer any questions about 
the update as well as the request for additional funding. 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
Depending upon Council action, potentially up to $10,000.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, approve Resolution 2014-31 authorizing additional 
funding in support of challenge to Senate Bill 7. 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Confidential/Attorney Work Project/Subject to Joint Defense and Common Interest 

Agreement 
 

To:  SB 7 Funding Cities 
 
From: Patrick Whitnell, General Counsel 
 
Date: September 22, 2014 
 
Re:  Status of SB 7 Appeal 
 
This memorandum serves as the League’s status report on the SB 7 litigation and the 
appeal from the trial court’s ruling that SB 7 is constitutional. 
 
Trial Court Decision 
 

The trial court held that SB 7 did not conflict with charter provisions or ordinances that 
permit charter cities to not require contractors to comply with the State’s Prevailing 
Wage laws. Further, the court concluded that certain other constitutional challenges to 
SB 7 were not ripe for adjudication. The League believes that the trial court 
misinterpreted two California Supreme Court cases that the cities were relying on: 
(State Building and Construction  Trades Council of California, AFL-CIO v. City of 
Vista (2012) 54 Cal.4th 547 ("Vista"); Sonoma County Organization of Public 
Employees v. County of Sonoma (1979) 23 Cal.3d 296, 314-318 ("SCOPE").) The 
League believes that the trial court’s decision leaves open arguments for a 
successful appeal. 
 
Costs of Litigation at the Trial Court 
 
To date, the League has been billed $116,000 for the litigation costs at the trial 
court. With the League agreeing, to pay half of these costs, the costs to the 
cities that are named plaintiffs and the funding cities are $58,000. The League 
collected $50,000 from the participating cities ($2,500 each). Thus, the 20 
cities are collectively responsible for the remaining $8,000 of their share of the 
costs or $400 each. Please note that this amount may go up as there may be 
litigation costs incurred at the trial court that have not yet been billed to the 

 

 

 

1400 K Street, Suite 400  Sacramento, California 95814
Phone: 916.658.8200 Fax: 916.658.8240

www.cacities.org



To: SB 7 Funding Cities 
From: Patrick Whitnell, General Counsel 
Date: September 22, 2014 
Page: 2 
Confidential/Attorney Work Project/Subject to Joint Defense and Common Interest 
Agreement 
 

League. We do not expect the total amount of costs at trial court to exceed 
$125,000. 
 
Costs of an Appeal 
The litigation team has estimated that the cost of an appeal will be $125,000. 
This cost estimate does not include the costs for associating in an appellate 
specialist to assist the litigation. Although the litigation team is experienced in 
litigating at the appellate level, the League believes that an appellate specialist 
will provide useful help on appellate strategy and in crafting the legal 
arguments, and that the additional costs are appropriate given the importance of 
the legal issues at stake. The current litigation team would continue as the lead 
litigators and would consult with the appellate specialist on an as-needed basis. 
 
Cities that are Named Plaintiffs 
 
The six cities that are named plaintiffs at the trial court have all authorized 
continued participation in the appeal. (Carlsbad, El Cajon, El Centro, Fresno, 
Oceanside, and Vista.) 
 
League Funding Participation 
 
The League Board’s Executive Committee has authorized the League to fund 
the appeal up to one-half of the costs of appeal not to exceed one-half of the 
amount the League collected from its Voluntary Litigation Surcharge on the 
membership. This is the same funding authorization as was given by the 
League’s Board at the outset of litigation for litigating the case through the trial 
court. The League’s Surcharge fund has enough funding available to meet the 
League’s obligation. 
 
League Participation as an Amicus 
 
The League will be asking our Legal Advocacy Committee to recommend that 
the League submitting an amicus brief in support of the cities at the Court of 
Appeal. This request will be considered by the Committee on Thursday, 
September 25. We expect that Committee will make this recommendation as 
they previously recommended to the League’s Board that the League 
participate in funding the litigation at the trial court. We are also informed that 
CSAC would join a brief filed by the League. 
 
 
 
 



To: SB 7 Funding Cities 
From: Patrick Whitnell, General Counsel 
Date: September 22, 2014 
Page: 3 
Confidential/Attorney Work Project/Subject to Joint Defense and Common Interest 
Agreement 
 

Timing 
 
The first step will be to seek a stay from the Court of Appeal on the 
implementation date of SB 7, which is January 1, 2015. This will likely be filed 
in early October with the main appeal being filed by mid-October. The 
League’s amicus brief would then be due around mid-December.  
 
League Recommendation to Cities 
 
The League makes the following recommendations: 
 

 That cities fund the appeal on the same terms as they provided funding for the 
litigation at trial court: not-to-exceed $5,000 for each funding city and $10,000 
for each city participating as a named party. 

 In addition, that cities authorize those funds committed at for the trial court 
litigation but not used be committed to the appeal. As the trial court litigation 
was initially estimated at $200,000, we estimate that at least $75,000 of 
already committed funds would be available for the appeal. The cities’ share 
would be $37,500 or $1875 per city assuming all currently participating cities 
agree to commit this funding.  

 That cities consider authorizing the continued funding the litigation if the case 
continues to litigated in the California Supreme Court after the appellate 
decision is issued. The costs of litigating the case in the Supreme Court are 
estimated to be roughly $90,000 to $100,000. The League believes that an 
appeal to the Supreme Court is highly likely regardless of how the decision 
turns out at the Court of Appeal. 

 
Cities choosing not to continue funding the appeal will be invoiced their proportionate 
share of the remaining costs of the litigation at the trial court.  
 
Please let me know if you have further questions. 
 
c: Jim Lough 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-31 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FUNDING IN SUPPORT OF 

CHALLENGE TO SENATE BILL 7 
 

 
 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
October 7, 2014, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member_____________, 
seconded by Council Member_____________ and carried that the following Resolution be 
adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2013 the State of California passed legislation in the form of Senate Bill 7 
(“SB 7”) which severely limits the Constitutional rights of Charter Cities to govern their own 
affairs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SB 7 requires that all contracts for public works issued by Charter Cities 
include the requirement to pay prevailing wages from and after December 31, 2014, even if 
such public works contracts use purely local funds and no state funds, or lose their ability to 
secure any state funds or grants whatsoever on any contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SB 7, which mandates the payment of higher rates and enacted limitations 
on the manner in which Charter Cities establish contractual relationships with private 
contractors to build facilities for the benefit of their communities, will require Charter Cities to 
pay more money from local tax dollars to meet state-imposed goals that are not legally matters 
of statewide concern, as determined in 2012 by the California Supreme Court in the State 
Building and Construction Trades Councils of California, AFL-CIO v. City of Vista case; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore (“City”), a charter city since 2000, is desirous of 
maintaining its ability to determine how local funds are to be expended with respect to public 
works contracts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council previously authorized City’s participation in funding 

litigation brought by the Charter Cities of Carlsbad, El Cajon, El Centro, Fresno, Oceanside and 
Vista to challenge the enactment of SB7 (“the Home Rule Litigation”) in the amount of $5,000 as 
an associate Charter City, which Home Rule Litigation is also funded by the participating 
plaintiffs, the League of California Cities and approximately nine (9) other associate Charter 
Cities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the trial court has recently issued a determination in the Home Rule 

Litigation adverse to the plaintiff Charter Cities, and such Charter Cities have authorized appeal 
of the adverse ruling; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuit of such appeal of the determination in the Home Rule Litigation 

through the Court of Appeal and thereafter the California Supreme Court will require additional 



 
 
 
funding, and the City Council has determined that its interests are served in participating in such 
appeal efforts. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
does hereby find and approve as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. The City Council hereby approves additional funding to the SB 7 challenge effort in 
the amount of $5,000 per appeal step, for a maximum potential additional 
contribution of $10,000. 
 

3. The City Council also authorizes the City Manager to execute an amendment of the 
existing Joint Defense and Common Interest Agreement to reflect such additional 
participation if necessary. 

 
4. The City Council further authorizes the League of California Cities to apply any 

amount remaining of its initial $5,000 contribution amount for the SB 7 trial court 
effort toward the appeal effort. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 7th day of October 2014, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAINING:  

 ABSENT: 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

Extension of the Joint Defense & Common Interest Agreement to SB 7 
Litigation on Appeal 

The Parties to the Joint Defense & Common Interest Agreement, regarding SB7 litigation 
efforts effective October 15, 2013, agree to authorize and fund an appeal of the San Diego 
County Superior Court’s denial of a Writ of Mandate.   

This letter acknowledges that the Parties and Funding Cities agree and authorize this 
appeal. Additionally, this letter serves as written notice and agreement that the original Joint 
Defense & Common Interest Agreement (Agreement) remains in full force and effect for the 
forthcoming SB7 appeal and associated litigation efforts.  

Pursuant to Section 5.1(f) of the Agreement, funds remaining on deposit with the League 
of California Cities (League) will go toward funding the appellate proceedings. All other funding 
provisions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party below has knowledge of the above, consistent with the 
prior executed Agreement, as of the date specified: 

 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common 
Interest Agreement as a full Participating Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF CARLSBAD agrees to participate in this Joint Defense/Common Interest Agreement 
as a full participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

CITY OF EL CAJON agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as a full participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 



2 

 

 

CITY OF EL CENTRO agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as a full participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF FRESNO agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement as a 
full participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF OCEANSIDE agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as a full participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF VISTA agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement as full 
participating party (Petitioner): 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

 

 

CITY OF CHULA VISTA agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest 
Agreement as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 



3 

 

 

CITY OF LA QUINTA agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF MERCED agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement as 
an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF MONTEREY agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest 
Agreement as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 



4 

 

 

CITY OF PALO ALTO agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement 
as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF SAN MARCOS agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest 
Agreement as an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

CITY OF SOVANG agrees to participate in this Joint Defense Common Interest Agreement as 
an Associate Party: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 

 

TULARE COUNTY COUNCIL OF CITIES agrees to participate in this Joint Defense 
Common Interest Agreement as an Associate Party, on behalf of the Cities of Exeter, Porterville, 
Tulare and Visalia: 

_________________________________________   Date:__________________ 

Name/Title 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 1
 

 
  

134 Cal.App.4th 170 
Court of Appeal, Fourth District, Division 1, 

California. 

Melvin SHAPIRO, Plaintiff and Appellant, 
v. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF The CENTRE CITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION et al., 

Defendants and Respondents. 

No. D045506. | Nov. 22, 2005. 

Synopsis 
Background: Citizen filed action against city 
redevelopment agency and the board of a nonprofit 
corporation created by the city seeking declaration that 
the board could not hold closed-session meetings with 
legal counsel for the redevelopment agency to assist the 
Agency with its eminent domain litigation. The Superior 
Court of San Diego County, No. GIC826004, Richard 
E.L. Strauss, J., denied relief and citizen appealed. 
  

[Holding:] The Court of Appeal, Irion, J., held that under 
the Brown Act, the board could not hold the closed 
sessions as to eminent domain litigation to which it was 
not a party. 
  

Reversed with instructions. 
  
 
 

West Headnotes (10) 
 
 
[1] 
 

Evidence 
Municipal and county ordinances 

 
 Court of Appeal would take judicial notice of a 

certified copy of a city council resolution that 
created a nonprofit redevelopment agency. 

3 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[2] Appeal and Error 

 Cases Triable in Appellate Court 
 

 Court of Appeal applies a de novo standard of 
review where its task consists of applying a 
statute to underlying facts that are not in dispute.

6 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[3] 
 

Appeal and Error 
Inferences from facts proved 

 
 To the extent that a trial court draws factual 

inferences, appellate court defers to those 
inferences to the extent they are supported by 
substantial evidence in the record. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[4] 
 

Statutes 
Absent terms;  silence;  omissions 

 
 The function of the court in construing a statute 

is simply to ascertain and declare what is in 
terms or in substance contained therein, not to 
insert what has been omitted, or to omit what 
has been inserted. 

Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[5] 
 

Statutes 
Plain language;  plain, ordinary, common, or 

literal meaning 
 

 If statutory language is clear and unambiguous, 
the plain meaning of the statute governs, and 
that meaning must be applied according to its 
terms. 

Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 2
 

 
[6] 
 

Statutes 
Purpose and intent;  determination thereof 

Statutes 
Plain, literal, or clear meaning;  ambiguity 

 
 If statutory terms are ambiguous, courts may 

resort to extrinsic sources, including the 
ostensible objects to be achieved and the 
legislative history. 

Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[7] 
 

Municipal Corporations 
Rules of procedure and conduct of business 

 
 Statutory exceptions authorizing closed sessions 

of legislative bodies are construed narrowly and 
the Brown Act “sunshine law” is construed 
liberally in favor of openness in conducting 
public business. West’s Ann.Cal.Gov.Code § 
54950 et seq. 

3 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[8] 
 

Courts 
Previous Decisions as Controlling or as 

Precedents 
 

 If otherwise relevant, courts consider Attorney 
General opinions with the understanding that an 
opinion of the Attorney General is not a mere 
advisory opinion, but a statement which, 
although not binding on the judiciary, must be 
regarded as having a quasi judicial character and 
is entitled to great respect, and given great 
weight by the courts. 

2 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[9] 
 

Courts 
Previous Decisions as Controlling or as 

Precedents 
 

 Attorney General opinions dealing with the 

Brown Act are given great weight by the courts 
because the Attorney General regularly advises 
many local agencies about the meaning of the 
Brown Act and publishes a manual designed to 
assist local governmental agencies in complying 
with the Act’s open meeting requirements. 
West’s Ann.Cal.Gov.Code § 54950 et seq. 

4 Cases that cite this headnote 
 

 
 
[10] 
 

Municipal Corporations 
Rules of procedure and conduct of business 

 
 Because the Brown Act abrogates all 

attorney-client privilege principles applicable to 
meetings required to be held in open session 
under the Brown Act, except as expressly 
permitted, board of a nonprofit corporation 
created by city to assist redevelopment agency 
could not hold closed-session meetings with 
legal counsel for the city redevelopment agency 
to assist the Agency with its eminent domain 
litigation to which it was not a party; there was 
no express authorization for the board to meet in 
such closed session. West’s Ann.Cal.Gov.Code 
§ 54956.9. 

See 9 Witkin, Cal. Procedure (4th ed. (1997) 
Administrative Proceedings, § 15 et seq. 

3 Cases that cite this headnote 

 

 
 

Attorneys and Law Firms 

**827 Charles Wolfinger, San Diego, for Plaintiff and 
Appellant. 

Lounsbery, Ferguson, Altona & Peak, Helen Holmes 
Peak, San Diego, and Judith Hartwig, Escondido, for 
Defendant and Respondent Board of Directors of Centre 
City Development Corporation. 

Michael J. Aguirre, City Attorney, Claudia Gacitua Silva 
and David J. Karlin, Deputy City Attorneys, for 
Defendant and Respondent San Diego City Council. 

Opinion 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 3
 

IRION, J. 

 
*173 In this appeal, we examine whether Centre City 
Development Corporation (CCDC)—a nonprofit 
corporation created by the City of San Diego—may hold 
closed-session meetings with legal counsel for the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (the 
Agency) to assist the Agency with its eminent domain 
litigation. Seeking declaratory, injunctive and mandamus 
relief, plaintiff Melvin Shapiro alleges that defendant 
CCDC’s Board of Directors (CCDC Board) must meet in 
open session with the Agency’s legal counsel pursuant to 
the Brown Act (Gov.Code, § 54950 et seq.).1 Shapiro 
argues that because CCDC is not a party to the Agency’s 
eminent domain litigation, the CCDC Board may not rely 
on section 54956.9 of the Brown Act, which permits the 
legislative **828 body of a local agency to hold 
closed-session meetings with its legal counsel to discuss 
litigation to which it is a party. 
  
*174 The trial court ruled against Shapiro, concluding 
that the CCDC acts on behalf of the Agency with respect 
to the eminent domain litigation and thus may meet in 
closed session with the Agency’s counsel under the 
closed-session rules applicable to the Agency. 
  
We disagree with the trial court’s interpretation of the 
Brown Act. We are required by case law to narrowly 
construe the Brown Act’s open meeting exceptions, and 
the text of section 54956.9 makes clear that the 
Legislature intended to abrogate all attorney-client 
privilege principles applicable to meetings required to be 
held in open session under the Brown Act, except as 
expressly permitted by section 54956.9. Finding no 
express authorization for the CCDC Board to meet in 
closed session with legal counsel for the Agency in the 
text of section 54956.9, we conclude that such 
closed-session meetings are not permitted by the Brown 
Act. Although defendants present legitimate policy 
arguments for allowing closed-session meetings when one 
local agency delegates certain litigation-related tasks to 
another local agency, such arguments must be addressed 
to the Legislature, not this court. Accordingly, we reverse 
the trial court’s judgment denying the relief sought by 
Shapiro and instruct the trial court to order declaratory 
and mandamus relief against the CCDC Board’s practice 
of meeting in closed session with legal counsel for the 
Agency regarding the Agency’s eminent domain 
litigation. 
  
 

I 

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

A 

History of the Agency and CCDC 

[1] The City of San Diego (the City) created the Agency in 
1958 and designated the City Council as the Agency’s 
governing body.2 In 1975 the City created the nonprofit 
CCDC to provide various redevelopment services to the 
Agency.3 The City is the sole member of the CCDC and 
appoints the CCDC Board. 
  
*175 The “Redevelopment Plan for the Centre City 
Redevelopment Project” (Redevelopment Plan), which 
covers much of downtown San Diego, was adopted by the 
City Council in 1992.4 CCDC and the Agency are parties 
to an operating agreement **829 which states that CCDC 
will “provide general management and other staff services 
for Agency” with respect to the redevelopment projects in 
the Centre City area. Those services include “overall 
executive direction” for the Centre City redevelopment. 
The operating agreement makes clear that the CCDC is 
under the supervision of the Agency, stating that “[i]n the 
performance of its duties hereunder, [CCDC] shall be 
under the direction of Agency, and shall abide by actions 
taken, directives given, and policies adopted with respect 
to the [Centre City redevelopment] by Agency.”5 

  
 

B 

The Role of CCDC and the Agency in Eminent Domain 
Proceedings 

This appeal arises out of the Agency’s and CCDC’s role 
in eminent domain proceedings. The Community 
Redevelopment Law (Health & Saf.Code, § 33000 et seq. 
(CRL)) provides the statutory authority for the Agency to 
exercise powers of eminent domain. The CRL states that, 
for the purposes of redevelopment, a redevelopment 
agency may “[a]cquire real property by eminent domain.” 
(Health & Saf.Code, §§ 33391, subd. (b), 33003 [defining 
“agency”].)6 Accordingly, “[r]edevelopment plans may 
provide for the agency *176 to acquire by ... 
condemnation all or part of the real property in the project 
area.” (Health & Saf.Code, § 33342.) Here, the 
Redevelopment Plan authorizes the Agency to acquire 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 4
 

property through eminent domain.7 

  
California’s Eminent Domain Law (Code Civ. Proc., § 
1230.010 et seq.) requires that the Agency fulfill certain 
procedural requirements in exercising its eminent domain 
authority. Before filing an eminent domain action, the 
City Council, as the **830 legislative body of the 
Agency, must hold a public hearing to determine whether 
to adopt a resolution of necessity for acquisition of 
property by eminent domain. (See Code Civ. Proc., §§ 
1245.235, 1240.040, 1245.220.) After adopting a 
resolution of necessity, the Agency must file a lawsuit to 
institute the eminent domain litigation. (See Code Civ. 
Proc., § 1250.110.) The Agency (with the City Council as 
its legislative body) performs these tasks itself, and does 
not delegate them to CCDC. 
  
Although the Agency holds the hearings to determine 
whether to adopt a resolution of necessity and files the 
eminent domain lawsuits in its name, it delegates other 
tasks relevant to land acquisition and eminent domain 
proceedings for the Centre City redevelopment to CCDC. 
Specifically relevant to eminent domain litigation, 
CCDC’s responsibilities under the operating agreement 
are to (1) “[c]oordinate the real estate acquisition process 
necessary to execute the [Centre City redevelopment], 
including ... obtaining approvals of acquisition prices, if 
required, from Agency; provided, however, that [CCDC] 
shall not ... conduct condemnation actions”; and (2) 
“[c]oordinate and utilize other services provided ... by 
consultants selected by and under separate contract with 
the City or Agency, ... including ... legal opinions and 
documentation.” 
  
*177 The CCDC is given an annual budget by the Agency 
for the acquisition of real property on behalf of the 
Agency. CCDC is responsible for obtaining an appraisal 
of each property and conducting negotiations with the 
property owners regarding compensation for loss of the 
condemned property. As trial of each eminent domain 
lawsuit approaches, CCDC, acting as the Agency’s 
representative, will make a final good faith offer to the 
property owner. Any settlement is subject to the CCDC 
Board’s finding that the settlement is within the budget 
allocated by the Agency for the acquisition of real 
property and is not a “gift of public funds.” CCDC 
estimates that 90 percent of Agency’s eminent domain 
lawsuits are resolved through settlement. 
  
In connection with its role in approving the settlement of 
eminent domain litigation, the CCDC Board confers with 
an outside law firm hired by the Agency to litigate the 
eminent domain lawsuits. The publicly posted agendas 
announcing these meetings note that they will take place 

in closed session pursuant to section 54956.9 and indicate 
the specific eminent domain lawsuits that are to be 
discussed. After the meetings, the CCDC publishes 
minutes, which typically indicate that the CCDC Board 
received a report from special counsel for the Agency in 
closed session regarding the litigation, and on occasion, 
that the CCDC Board has given direction regarding a 
potential settlement. 
  
 

Shapiro’s Brown Act Claims Against the Agency and 
CCDC 

Shapiro, who is a resident of San Diego, filed a complaint 
for declaratory, injunctive and mandamus relief against 
the CCDC Board and the City Council acting as the 
governing body of the Agency.8 Shapiro alleges that the 
CCDC Board and the **831 Agency violate the open 
meeting requirements of the Brown Act when the CCDC 
Board meets in closed session with legal counsel for the 
Agency to discuss pending eminent domain litigation.9 
Although section 54956.9, subdivision (a), contains an 
exception which permits a legislative body to meet with 
its legal counsel in closed session when it is a *178 party 
to a litigation, Shapiro contends that because CCDC is not 
a party to the eminent domain litigation, the CCDC Board 
must meet with the Agency’s legal counsel in open 
session.10 

  
Shapiro filed a motion seeking a writ of mandate or a 
prohibitory injunction and declaratory relief. Based on 
briefing, declarations and attached documents submitted 
by the parties, the trial court ruled against Shapiro, 
holding: “Plaintiff’s interpretation of this exception as 
narrowly limited to parties actually named in a lawsuit is 
not persuasive. Here, CCDC plays an important role in 
the City’s redevelopment projects and the Agency may 
delegate the evaluation of the eminent domain issues to 
CCDC for purposes of ensuring that the overall aspects of 
the redevelopment plan are consistently applied.” 
  
Shapiro appeals, framing the central issue as follows: 
“Does section 54956.9, subdivision (a) prohibit CCDC 
from holding a closed session with the Agency’s counsel 
on eminent domain suits when it is not named as a party 
in the litigation?”11 

  
 

II 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 5
 

DISCUSSION 

A 

Standard of Review 

[2] [3] We apply a de novo standard of review where, as 
here, our task consists of applying a statute to underlying 
facts that are not in dispute. (Shapiro v. San Diego City 
Council (2002) 96 Cal.App.4th 904, 917, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 
631 (Shapiro ).) To the extent that the trial court drew 
factual *179 inferences, we defer to those inferences to 
the extent they are supported by substantial evidence in 
the record. (Id. at p. 918, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 631.) 
  
 

B 

The Brown Act 

The Brown Act requires that, except as otherwise 
provided, “[a]ll meetings of the **832 legislative body of 
a local agency shall be open and public, and all persons 
shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative 
body of a local agency ....” (§ 54953, subd. (a).)12 “The 
Brown Act was designed to facilitate public participation 
in local governmental decisions and to curb misuse of the 
democratic process by secret legislation.” (Bell v. Vista 
Unified School Dist. (2000) 82 Cal.App.4th 672, 681, 98 
Cal.Rptr.2d 263.) The statute expressly declares 
legislative intent that the actions of local agencies “be 
taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted 
openly,” and states that “[t]he people ... do not give their 
public servants the right to decide what is good for the 
people to know and what is not good for them to know.” 
(§ 54950.) 
  
The parties do not dispute, and we agree, that both the 
San Diego City Council (acting as the governing body for 
the Agency) and the CCDC Board are legislative bodies 
of local agencies and are subject to the Brown Act. (§ 
54952.) 
  
At issue is section 54956.9, which creates an exception to 
the Brown Act’s open meeting requirements for meetings 
with legal counsel regarding pending litigation. Section 
54956.9 allows “a legislative body of a local agency” to 
hold “a closed session to confer with, or receive advice 

from, its legal counsel regarding pending litigation when 
discussion in open session concerning those matters 
would prejudice the position of the local agency in the 
litigation.”13 As relevant here, section 54956.9 further 
defines the pending *180 litigation exception as follows: 
“For purposes of this section, litigation shall be 
considered pending when” “[l]itigation, to which the local 
agency is a party, has been initiated formally.” (Id. at 
subd. (a).) 
  
Central to the issues presented here, section 54956.9 
establishes that the general rules of attorney-client 
privilege are irrelevant in deciding whether meetings by 
the governing board of a local agency may be held in 
closed session. According to a provision added to section 
54956.9 in 1987 (the 1987 amendment): “For purposes of 
this chapter, all expressions of the lawyer-client privilege 
other than those provided in this section are hereby 
abrogated. This section is the exclusive expression of the 
lawyer-client privilege for purposes of conducting 
closed-session meetings pursuant to this chapter.” 
(Stats.1987, ch. 1320, § 5, p. 4765.) Thus, by statute, 
generally applicable principles of attorney-client privilege 
cannot provide the answer to the question before us. 
Instead, we must look to the text of section 54956.9. 
  
 

The Text of Section 54956.9 Does Not Expressly 
Authorize CCDC to Meet in Closed Session with Legal 

Counsel for the Agency 

[4] [5] [6] [7] Our analysis of section 54956.9 presents a 
question of statutory interpretation, and we approach this 
task mindful **833 that “[t]he function of the court in 
construing a statute ‘is simply to ascertain and declare 
what is in terms or in substance contained therein, not to 
insert what has been omitted, or to omit what has been 
inserted....’ ” (Ventura County Deputy Sheriffs’ Assn. v. 
Board of Retirement (1997) 16 Cal.4th 483, 492, 66 
Cal.Rptr.2d 304, 940 P.2d 891.) If the language is clear 
and unambiguous, the plain meaning of the statute 
governs, and that meaning must be applied according to 
its terms. (Day v. City of Fontana (2001) 25 Cal.4th 268, 
272, 105 Cal.Rptr.2d 457, 19 P.3d 1196.) “If, however, 
the statutory terms are ambiguous, then we may resort to 
extrinsic sources, including the ostensible objects to be 
achieved and the legislative history.” (Ibid.) Highly 
relevant to our interpretation here is the rule that 
“[s]tatutory exceptions authorizing closed sessions of 
legislative bodies are construed narrowly and the Brown 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 6
 

Act *181 ‘sunshine law’ is construed liberally in favor of 
openness in conducting public business.” (Shapiro, supra, 
96 Cal.App.4th at p. 917, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 631; see also 
Epstein v. Hollywood Entertainment Dist. II Bus. 
Improvement Dist. (2001) 87 Cal.App.4th 862, 869, 104 
Cal.Rptr.2d 857 [“the Brown Act is a remedial statute that 
must be construed liberally so as to accomplish its 
purpose”].)14 

  
 

1. The Plain Language of Section 54956.9 
Shapiro argues that the Brown Act’s pending litigation 
exception does not allow the CCDC Board to meet in 
closed session with the Agency’s legal counsel because 
the meetings are not held to discuss “pending litigation” 
as that term in defined in section 54956.9. Shapiro points 
out that “pending litigation” is defined by the statute as 
that “to which the local agency is a party ” (§ 54956.9, 
subd. (a)), and CCDC is not and could not be a party to 
the eminent domain litigation. (See Code Civ. Proc., § 
1240.020; Health & Saf.Code, § 33391, subd. (b).) 
Shapiro argues that the Brown Act therefore does not 
authorize the CCDC Board to meet in closed session with 
the Agency’s eminent domain counsel. CCDC and the 
Agency disagree. They contend that because the CCDC 
Board acts as an agent of the Agency, it has the same 
right as the Agency to discuss eminent domain litigation 
with counsel in closed session. 
  
**834 As an initial observation, we note that if general 
attorney-client privilege rules applied, defendants’ focus 
on CCDC as an “agent” of the Agency might have some 
dispositive relevance. The attorney-client privilege *182 
treats communication between a lawyer and a client as 
confidential. (Evid.Code, § 952.) Evidence Code section 
951 defines “ ‘client’ ” as “a person who, directly or 
though an authorized representative, consults a lawyer for 
the purpose of ... securing legal service or advice....”15 
(Italics added.) Were we to apply this principle, CCDC 
might well be considered a client for the purposes of the 
attorney-client privilege when, acting on behalf of the 
Agency, it meets with the Agency’s legal counsel to 
discuss the Agency’s eminent domain litigation. Under 
general attorney-client privilege principles those 
conversations would be entitled to confidentiality, and 
CCDC would have a strong argument that it should be 
permitted to meet in closed session to preserve that 
confidentiality. 
  
Such analysis is not applicable here, however, because 
according to the clear terms of section 54956.9, the 
general rules of attorney-client privilege do not apply to 
determine whether a meeting with legal counsel may be 
held in closed session. Instead, a legislative body of a 

local agency is permitted to hold closed-session meetings 
with counsel to discuss pending litigation only as 
permitted by the terms of section 54956.9. Our Supreme 
Court has explained, based on its review of the legislative 
history of the 1987 amendment, that “the bill was 
intended to make it clear that closed sessions with counsel 
could only occur as provided in the Brown Act.” (Roberts 
v. City of Palmdale (1993) 5 Cal.4th 363, 378, 20 
Cal.Rptr.2d 330, 853 P.2d 496, italics added.) We have 
independently reviewed the legislative history of section 
54956.9 and have found no indication that the Legislature 
intended to permit the practice engaged in by CCDC. 
  
Thus, we look to the content of section 54956.9 to 
determine whether a meeting between the legislative body 
of one local agency and the legal counsel of another local 
agency falls within the narrow category of closed-session 
meetings permitted by section 54956.9. Doing so, we 
conclude that nowhere in the plain text of section 54956.9 
is the practice authorized. As CCDC acknowledges, 
“[w]hereas the Brown Act expressly authorizes closed 
*183 sessions between the legislative body and its counsel 
regarding formally initiated litigation to which a local 
agency is a party, there is no similar express 
authorization to meet in closed session where, as here, the 
legislative body delegates to another entity as its agent is 
powers to negotiate for the acquisition of real property.”16 

  
 

**835 2. The Attorney General Opinions Cited by the 
Agency and CCDC Are Inapplicable 
Although CCDC concedes that section 54956.9 does not 
expressly authorize its Board to meet in closed session 
with the Agency’s legal counsel, defendants nevertheless 
advocate that we imply a statutory authorization based on 
the analysis in three opinions of the Attorney General. As 
we explain, the Attorney General opinions do not lend 
support to defendants’ interpretation of section 54956.9. 
  
[8] [9] The opinion on which defendants place the most 
reliance was issued in 1984 by the Attorney General (67 
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 111, 113 (1984) (the 1984 Opinion)).17 
In the 1984 Opinion, the Attorney General concluded that 
*184 an airport commission created by a county board of 
supervisors was permitted to hold closed-session meetings 
with county counsel about airport-related litigation in 
which the county board of supervisors was a defendant. 
The 1984 Opinion hinged on the fact that county counsel, 
as the legal representative of the county, had a preexisting 
attorney-client relationship with all county entities, 
including the airport commission. Thus, general principles 
of attorney-client privilege permitted the airport 
commission to meet confidentially in closed session with 
county counsel to discuss litigation against the county 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 7
 

board of supervisors in which it, too, was interested. 
  
We conclude that the 1984 Opinion is irrelevant because 
it was issued in March 1984, before section 54956.9 took 
effect. The 1984 Opinion thus did not interpret section 
54956.9. Instead, it interpreted court rulings implying an 
exception to the Brown Act’s open meeting requirements 
based on the generally applicable principles of 
attorney-client privilege. (See Sutter Sensible Planning, 
Inc. v. Board of Supervisors (1981) 122 Cal.App.3d 813, 
823–825, 176 Cal.Rptr. 342; Sacramento Newspaper 
Guild v. Sacramento County Bd. of Suprs. (1968) 263 
Cal.App.2d 41, 51–58, 69 Cal.Rptr. 480.) As section 
54956.9 establishes, general attorney-client principles 
have no bearing on whether a legislative body may meet 
in closed session with **836 legal counsel pursuant to 
section 54956.9. Accordingly, the 1984 Opinion also has 
no bearing on the question before us. 
  
The two other Attorney General opinions (80 
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 308 (1997) (the 1997 Opinion); 86 
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 210 (2003) (the 2003 Opinion)) are 
similarly irrelevant. Those opinions include brief citations 
to the inapposite 1984 Opinion arising in factual and legal 
contexts that are not analogous to our situation.18 

  
 

*185 3. Public Policy Arguments for Striking a Different 
Balance Between Local Agency Efficiency and Local 
Agency Openness Are Better Directed to the Legislature 
Focusing on public policy concerns, the Agency and 
CCDC argue that although section 54956.9 does not 
expressly authorize the CCDC Board to meet in closed 
session with the Agency’s counsel, we should apply a 
broad interpretation of section 54956.9 in the interest of 
promoting governmental efficiency. Although CCDC and 
the Agency present legitimate arguments in favor of the 
efficiencies afforded by the Agency’s delegation of 
certain litigation-related redevelopment tasks to CCDC, 
and we have no reason to doubt that CCDC diligently and 
competently carries out its delegated duties, we are 
mindful that is not our role, but rather that of the 
Legislature, to strike an appropriate balance between the 
competing interests of openness and efficiency in the 
context of the Brown Act. Public policy arguments in 
favor of a more expansive scope for section 54956.9 
based on the interest of governmental efficiency must be 
directed to the Legislature, not this court. 
  
 

4. Conclusion 
[10] Thus, having considered and rejected defendants’ 
arguments in favor of an expansive interpretation of 
section 54956.9, and with no indicia of legislative intent 
to the contrary, we are constrained by the plain language 
of the Brown Act to conclude that CCDC may not meet in 
closed session with the Agency’s counsel to discuss 
pending litigation to which CCDC is not a party. In place 
of the confidentiality of communication afforded by the 
generally applicable attorney-client privilege, the 
Legislature has enacted a narrow exception to the Brown 
Act’s open-meeting requirements. Under this narrow 
exception, the “legislative body of a local agency ” may 
hold “a closed session to confer with, or receive advice 
from, its legal counsel regarding pending litigation” (§ 
54956.9) when it is “[l]itigation[ ] to which the local 
agency is a party” (id., subd. (a)). Because we are 
required to narrowly interpret exceptions to the Brown 
Act’s open meeting requirements **837 (Shapiro, supra, 
96 Cal.App.4th at p. 917, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 631), and the 
Brown Act does not expressly authorize one local agency 
to delegate to a second local agency the authority to meet 
in closed session with legal counsel, we conclude that the 
CCDC Board may not meet in closed session with legal 
counsel for the Agency to discuss the Agency’s eminent 
domain litigation. 
  
 

*186 DISPOSITION 

The judgment is reversed. The trial court is instructed to 
issue declaratory and mandamus relief on that basis that 
the Board of Directors of Centre City Development 
Corporation may not meet in closed session with legal 
counsel for the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 
Diego to discuss the Agency’s eminent domain litigation 
because CCDC is not a party to that litigation. 
  

WE CONCUR: HUFFMAN, Acting P.J., and AARON, J. 

Parallel Citations 

134 Cal.App.4th 170, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 
Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 
 

 Footnotes 
 
1 All further statutory references are to the Government Code unless otherwise indicated. 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 8
 

  
2 
 

The City has filed a motion requesting that we take judicial notice of a certified copy of City Council Resolution No. 147378 that
created the Agency in 1958. We hereby grant the request. 
 

3 
 

CCDC’s articles of incorporation state: “The specific and primary purpose for which this corporation is formed is to provide
redevelopment services ... by contract with the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego.” The articles of incorporation 
enumerate certain services to be provided by the CCDC, such as “[e]ffectuation of the general Centre City Plan and policies 
adopted by the Redevelopment Agency and the San Diego City Council” and “[n]egotiations and subsequent recommendations to 
the Redevelopment Agency with regard to property ownership, development, and financial activity within redevelopment project
areas.” 
 

4 
 

The Redevelopment Plan was adopted in 1992, expressly giving the Agency the power of eminent domain for 12 years, in
accordance with Health and Safety Code section 33333.2, subdivision (a)(4), which imposes “[a] time limit, not to exceed 12 years 
from the adoption of the redevelopment plan, for commencement of eminent domain proceedings....” In April 2004 the City 
Council amended the Redevelopment Plan to make the eminent domain authority applicable for another 12 years. 
 

5 
 

CCDC also submitted a declaration by its manager of contracting and public works stating that CCDC acts as an agent for the
Agency. 
 

6 
 

A local agency may take property by eminent domain only if authorized by statute. Code of Civil Procedure section 1240.020
states that “[t]he power of eminent domain may be exercised to acquire property for a particular use only by a person authorized by 
statute to exercise the power of eminent domain to acquire such property for that use.” Similarly, a complaint to acquire property 
in eminent domain must contain “a reference to the statute that authorizes the plaintiff to acquire the property by eminent domain.”
(Code.Civ.Proc., § 1250.310, subd. (d)(3).) Further, because the federal and state Constitutions require “protection of private 
citizens’ property,” there are several important restraints on the power to condemn, including that “ ‘[s]tatutory language defining 
eminent domain powers is strictly construed and any reasonable doubt concerning the existence of the power is resolved against
the entity.’ ” (Burbank–Glendale–Pasadena Airport Authority v. Hensler (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 556, 561–562, 99 Cal.Rptr.2d 
729.) 
 

7 
 

The parties do not identify any statute that would authorize CCDC to acquire property by eminent domain or to participate as a 
plaintiff in an eminent domain action. It is also clear that the CCDC is not authorized by the Agency to exercise the power of 
eminent domain, as its operating agreement with the Agency states that CCDC “shall not ... conduct condemnation actions.” Had 
the Agency attempted such delegation, it would in any event be invalid without specific statutory authorization. (See City of Sierra 
Madre v. Superior Court (1961) 191 Cal.App.2d 587, 590, 12 Cal.Rptr. 836 [city has no inherent authority to delegate eminent 
domain powers]; Burbank–Glendale–Pasadena Airport Authority v. Hensler, supra, 83 Cal.App.4th at pp. 561–562, 99 
Cal.Rptr.2d 729 [delegation by three cities of their eminent domain powers to airport authority was permissible because it was
authorized by a joint powers agreement, and § 6502, as amended, allows local agencies to enter into joint powers agreements, to
create a separate joint powers agency “ ‘to exercise on their behalf powers they hold in common’ ”].) 
 

8 
 

Shapiro filed suit pursuant to section 54960, subdivision (a), which provides that “any interested person may commence an action 
by mandamus, injunction or declaratory relief for the purpose of stopping or preventing violations” of the Brown Act. (See also 
McKee v. Orange Unified School Dist. (2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 1310, 1312, 2 Cal.Rptr.3d 774 [a citizen of the State of California
is an “ ‘interested person’ ” within the meaning of § 54960].) 
 

9 
 

Although the CCDC Board is the entity that holds the closed-session meetings, Shapiro sued the Agency as well, asserting that 
“[t]he Agency’s actions in authorizing its counsel and CCDC to meet in closed sessions on the suits instead of holding them itself, 
also violate subdivision (a) [of section 54956.9].” Logically, the Agency also would be subject to whatever injunctive, declaratory
or mandamus relief prohibits the Agency’s counsel from meeting with CCDC in closed session. 
 

10 
 

Shapiro’s complaint also sought relief for alleged violations of the Brown Act’s agenda-posting requirements. The trial court 
granted some of the requested relief. The agenda-posting requirements are not an issue in this appeal. 
 

11 
 

In his briefing on appeal Shapiro also questions whether section 54956.9, subdivision (a), and the CRL (Health & Saf.Code, § 
33121.5) “prohibit the Agency from delegating its right to hold such closed sessions to make final decisions on eminent domain
suits to CCDC.” Shapiro did not assert the CRL as a basis for relief in his complaint and did not in his complaint ask the trial court
to determine that the Agency violated the CRL by delegating certain decisionmaking to CCDC. Accordingly, we decline to reach
the issue here. (Cinnamon Square Shopping Center v. Meadowlark Enterprises (1994) 24 Cal.App.4th 1837, 1844, 30 Cal.Rptr.2d 
697 [“ ‘As a general rule an appellate court will consider only such points as were raised in the trial court, and this rule precludes a
party from asserting, on appeal, claims to relief not asserted or asked for in the court below’ ”].) 
 



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 9
 

12 
 

Similarly, section 54962 of the Brown Act states: “Except as expressly authorized by this chapter [and other enumerated
provisions], no closed session may be held by any legislative body of any local agency.” 
 

13 
 

Section 54956.9 explicitly identifies eminent domain lawsuits as one type of litigation falling within its scope. It has been observed
that there are good reasons for allowing a local agency to hold a closed session to discuss settlement strategy for eminent domain 
litigation. “ ‘No purchase would ever be made for less than the maximum amount the public body would pay if the public
(including the seller) could attend the session at which that maximum was set....’ ” (Kleitman v. Superior Court (1999) 74 
Cal.App.4th 324, 331, 87 Cal.Rptr.2d 813; see also Shapiro, supra, 96 Cal.App.4th at p. 914, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 631 [citing Kleitman
].) 
 

14 
 

To support his argument for narrowly interpreting section 54956.9, Shapiro cites the language recently added to the California 
Constitution by the passage of Proposition 59 in the November 2, 2004 general election. According to that language, “[a] statute, 
court rule, or other authority, including those in effect on the effective date of this subdivision, shall be broadly construed if it 
furthers the people’s right of access, and narrowly construed if it limits the right of access....” (Cal. Const., art. 1, § 3, subd. (b), 
par. (2), Sen. Const. Amend. No. 1, Stats. 2004 (2003–2004 Reg. Sess.) res. ch. 1, No. 2 West’s Cal. Legis. Service, p. A–1.) This 
citation does not materially contribute to our statutory analysis of section 54956.9 for two reasons. First, the language added by 
Proposition 59 is inapplicable here in that it states: “This subdivision does not repeal or nullify, expressly or by implication, any
constitutional or statutory exception to the right of access to public records or meetings of public bodies that is in effect on the 
effective date of this subdivision....” (Cal. Const., art. 1, § 3, subd. (b), par. (5), Sen. Const. Amend. No. 1, Stats. 2004 (2003–2004 
Reg. Sess.) res. ch. 1, No. 2 West’s Cal. Legis. Service, p. A–2.) Section 54956.9 falls under this savings clause because is a 
preexisting statutory exception to the right of access to meetings of public bodies. Second, even if the language added by
Proposition 59 did apply, it would merely be duplicative of the already-established principle that exceptions to the Brown Act are 
to be narrowly construed (Shapiro, supra, 96 Cal.App.4th at p. 917, 117 Cal.Rptr.2d 631), and thus it would not substantively add 
to the principles guiding our analysis. 
 

15 
 

“ ‘[T]he client’s freedom of communication requires a liberty of employing other means than his own personal action. The
privilege of confidence would be a vain one unless its exercise could be thus delegated. A communication, then, by any form of 
agency employed or set in motion by the client is within the privilege.’ ” (City & County of S.F. v. Superior Court (1951) 37 
Cal.2d 227, 236–237, 231 P.2d 26; see also State Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Superior Court (1997) 54 Cal.App.4th 625, 639, 62 
Cal.Rptr.2d 834 [in the context of a private business entity, communications between the company’s outside lawyers and a 
company’s employee who acted as a liaison with those lawyers were protected by the attorney-client privilege because the 
employee was “ ‘an authorized representative’ ”].) 
 

16 
 

Shapiro points out that section 54956.9 was amended in 1993 (the 1993 amendment) to broaden the instances in which a local
agency will be considered a party to pending litigation. The 1993 amendment provides: “A local agency shall be considered to be a 
‘party’ or to have a ‘significant exposure to litigation’ if an officer or employee of the local agency is a party or has significant
exposure to litigation concerning prior or prospective activities or alleged activities during the course and scope of that office or
employment, including litigation in which it is an issue whether an activity is outside the course and scope of the office or
employment.” (Stats.1993, ch. 1136, § 11, p. 6363.) We do not find the 1993 amendment to be relevant because it dealt with a
different issue. The 1993 amendment expanded the circumstances in which a local agency is considered a “party” to a pending 
litigation within the meaning of section 54956.9. Here, it is undisputed that the Agency is a party to a pending eminent domain
litigation and CCDC is not. The issue here—which is not addressed by the 1993 amendment—is whether an agent of a local 
agency has a right to hold closed meetings with the local agency’s legal counsel. 
 

17 
 

If otherwise relevant, we consider Attorney General opinions with the understanding that “[a]n opinion of the Attorney General ‘is 
not a mere “advisory” opinion, but a statement which, although not binding on the judiciary, must be “regarded as having a quasi 
judicial character and [is] entitled to great respect,” and given great weight by the courts. [Citations.]’ ” (Community 
Redevelopment Agency v. County of Los Angeles (2001) 89 Cal.App.4th 719, 727, 107 Cal.Rptr.2d 693.) This is especially true in 
the context of the Brown Act because “the Attorney General regularly advises many local agencies about the meaning of the
Brown Act and publishes a manual designed to assist local governmental agencies in complying with the Act’s open meeting
requirements.” (Freedom Newspapers, Inc. v. Orange County Employees Retirement System (1993) 6 Cal.4th 821, 829, 25 
Cal.Rptr.2d 148, 863 P.2d 218.) In the end, however, “ ‘ “whatever the force of administrative construction ... final responsibility
for the interpretation of the law rests with the courts.” ’ ” (Sanchez v. Unemployment Ins. Appeals Bd. (1977) 20 Cal.3d 55, 67, 141 
Cal.Rptr. 146, 569 P.2d 740.) 
 

18 
 

The 1997 Opinion refers favorably to the 1984 Opinion in the course of analyzing whether an advisory committee created by a
school board may meet in closed session under a different Brown Act provision (§ 54957) to interview candidates for the position 
of school superintendent on behalf of the school board. (80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen., supra, 308, 310–311.) Thus, the question presented 
had nothing to do with an interpretation of section 54956.9. The 2003 Opinion mentioned the 1984 Opinion in a footnote for the
purpose of distinguishing it, not endorsing it. (86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen., supra, 210, 213, fn. 3.) The issue was whether appointees to a 
state conservancy board, who were also members of other local agency bodies (city councils and a county board of supervisors)



Shapiro v. Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp., 134 Cal.App.4th 170... 

35 Cal.Rptr.3d 826, 05 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 9899, 2005 Daily Journal D.A.R. 13,510 

 

 © 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works. 10
 

could report in closed session to their own local agency bodies about information received in closed session of the conservancy 
board. In the course of deciding that this practice was not permissible, the Attorney General distinguished the closed-session 
meetings allowed in the 1984 Opinion on the basis that the county airport commission and the county board of supervisors
described in the 1984 Opinion were all “components” of the county, and thus all represented by county counsel. 
 

 
 
  
 End of Document 
 

© 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.

 
 
  



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne  Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

              City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: October 3, 2014 Meeting Date:  October 7, 2014 

Subject:       Activity Update 
 
 
Reports 

 

 CMC PG&E Solar Update  August 19 – September 16, 2014 

 PD PG&E Solar Update August 17 – September 18, 2014 

 
Travel Report 

 

 Brewer - CCUG Seminar Training 

 Chaney - Leadership and Accountability Training 

 Venegas – Technical Training for Clerks Series 100  

 













Memorandum 

TO:          M. GONSALVES  

FROM:  J. CHANEY, SERGEANT   

DATE:  SEPTEMBER 25, 2014  

RE:  LEADERSHIP AND ACCOUNTABILITY TRAINING   
  

On September 10th and 11th of this year I attended a Leadership and Accountability 
Training Workshop presented by Marin Consulting in South Lake Tahoe California. The 
focus of the training was directed towards supervision and leadership of subordinate 
employees in law enforcement settings. The training's focus also center around effective 
communication with employees and ways to improve and document performance through 
performance evaluations and counseling sessions along with other leadership and 
supervisory challenges faced in the role of a supervisor. 

The training will have a definite impact on my career and reiterated many skills as well 
as define and honed some new ones. 

 

       Sergeant J. Chaney 

 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Clerk 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Willard Rodarmel 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Janie Venegas, City Clerk 

Date: September 24, 2014  Meeting Date: October 7, 2014 

Subject: Technical Training for Clerks – Series 100 

 
I had the opportunity to attend Technical Training for Clerks (TTC), Series 100 at the 
University of Riverside Extension Center September 9-12, 2014.  Institute Director 
Maureen Kane has served as a TTC instructor since the program was developed by the 
City Clerk Association of California (CCAC) in 2002. 
 
Series 100 was a compilation of seven sessions each presented by several experts in 
the field of topic.  Each session included a vast amount of information presented via 
Power Point and was question and answer oriented.  There were 76 in attendance at 
this conference and students were broken up into groups of six to ten throughout the 
series to participate in exercises related to the session topic. 
 
The seven sessions were as follows: 
 101 – Local Government Overview 
 102 – Municipal Clerk Profession 
 103 – Management Skills 
 104 – Influencing Others 
 105 – Communication Skills 
 106 – Ethics and Personal Values 
 107 – The Clerk’s Role in Emergency Crisis Management 
 
All sessions were extremely informative, however, I took particular interest in two of the 
sessions.  “Influencing Others” presented in session 104 was enlightening.  We 
discussed the importance of speaking so as not to be misunderstood and utilizing the 
tools of influence.  The tools are words, voice, actions/non-verbal behavior and 
appearance.  The use of these tools will help a person to be better understood. 
 
I also enjoyed “Ethics and Personal Values” presented in session 106.  It was rather 
alarming to read a handout that said 91% of America lies on a regular basis, unless 
those statistics are lying.  It also stated people make lying acceptable and they tend to 
rationalize their story.  This handout encompassed all lies regardless if they were “little 
white lies” or large grandiose lies.  Truth-telling is a choice and it is best to tell the truth 
all the time.  There is no benefit to being a brutal truth-teller and it is best to weight the 
statement and balance how you tell the truth but do tell the truth. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
 
 
 
Overall, this series was extremely informative.  The group interactions were extremely 
beneficial and I was allowed to interact with others in the field of government and gain 
knowledge from their experiences. 
 
I truly appreciate the opportunity to attend this training.   
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda 10-7-14
	Item 2-1 - Minutes 9-16-14
	Item 2-2 - Warrant Register
	MJ100714-ETA
	MJ100714-GLTA First Bank
	MJ100714-GLTA
	MJ100714-RTA

	Item 2-3-1 - Staff Report - Approval Cinnamon Road Ditch Project
	Item 2-3-2 - Resolution 2014-27 - Approval Cinnamon Road Ditch Project
	Item 2-4-1 - Staff Report - Notice of Exemption Cinnamon Road Ditch Project
	Item 2-4-2 - Resolution 2014-28 Notice of Exemption Cinnamon Road Ditch Project
	Item 2-4-3 - NOE
	Item 2-4-4 - CEQA
	Item 2-5-1 - Veterans Day Parade Street Closure Request 2014
	Item 2-5-2 - Veterans Day Parade Flyer 2014
	Item 2-6-1 - Staff Report - 19th Ave Park Improvement 10-2014
	Item 2-6-2 - 19th Ave Soil Analysis
	Item 3-1-1 - Staff Report - B&L Storage 9-30-14
	Item 3-1-2 Resolution 2014-29 B&L Moving and Storage
	Item 3-1-3 Ordinance 2014-05 B&L Moving and Storage
	Item 3-1-4 - PC Resolution 2014-05 Zone and GP Change
	Item 3-2-1 - Staff Report - Home Occupation Modification 9-30-14
	Item 3-2-2 - Ordinance 2014-06 Home Occ Modification 9-30-14
	Item 3-2-3 - PC Resolution 2014-06 - Recommending Zoning Text Amendment 2104-02
	Item 3-3-1 - Staff Report - Animal Control
	Item 3-3-2 - Ordinance 2014-07 Animal Control
	Item 4-1-1 - Staff Report - City Attorney 10-2-14
	Item 4-1-2 - Resolution 2014-30 Jenell VB City Attorney
	Item 4-2-1 - Staff Report - SB7 Litigation and Funding 10-2014
	Item 4-2-2 - Memo to funding cities_092214
	Item 4-2-3 - Resolution 2014-31 re Additional SB7 Funding
	Item 4-2-4 - Letter_JOINT DEFENSE Agreement On Appeal_Draft
	Item 4-2-5 - Shapiro v Board of Directors of Centre City Development Corp
	Activity Update Memo 10-7-14
	AU1 - CMC 8-19 to 9-16-14
	AU2 - PD 8-17 to 9-18-14
	AU3 - Trip Report - Brewer CCUG 9-2014
	AU4 - Trip Report - Chaney Leadership Training 9-2014
	AU5 - Trip Report - Venegas TTC Series 100 9-2014



